















CALL TO ASSEMBLY

Please rise.

• Pledge of Allegiance (US)

I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for which it stands, one nation, under God,

indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

• **Pledge of Allegiance (Texas)**Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.

• Community Action Promise Community Action changes people's lives, embodies

Community Action changes people's lives, embodies the spirit of hope, improves communities, and makes America a better place to live. We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to Helping People Help themselves and each other.

• Our Mission CSNT applies all available strategies enabling Northeast Texas

families to lead improved, empowered, and self-reliant lives.

• Our Community Services Vision To be the leading organization in our region which empowers

families to be self-reliant, educated, and healthy

• Our Head Start Vision To provide a system of education and encouragement which

results in school-readiness for young children and their families

• Invocation

Board Meeting

Tuesday, July 23, 2024 @ 12:00 Noon Linden Administrative Office 304 East Houston Street Linden, Texas 75563 Cecelia Huff, Board Chairperson

Michelle Morehead, CCAP, NCRT, NCRI, Executive Director

If you need assistance with physical accessibility to the meeting, please call 903-756-5596 x 201

- 1. Call Meeting to Order
- 2. Establishment of a Quorum
- 3. Approval of Agenda 7/23/24 *
- 4. Approval of Minutes 6/25/24*
- 5. Chairman's Comments and Recognitions
- 6. Training

Dynamic Duo Part I. Roles and Responsibilities presented by Michelle Morehead

7. Committee Reports and Information

- A. Planning & Evaluation No current report required at this time
- **B**. Personnel No current report required at this time
- **C**. Finance No current report required at this time
- D. Executive This Committee meets only when necessary
- E. Nominating No current report required at this time
- F. By Laws- No current report required at this time

The Chair may make changes to committee rosters and/or develop new committees.

**Committees, other than Executive Committee, get named by the Board Chairperson

8. Action Items

- A. Seat new board member(s), if any ♥
- B. Approve Consent Agenda♥

1)	Head Start/EHS & PIR Reports	(OS 5.9)	Berny Harris
	Community Services Report		
3)	Human Resource Report	(OS 5.9)	Charlotte Hall
4)	Service & HS Transportation Reports	(OS 5.9)	Robert Norton

- C. Discuss/Approve CSNT Annual Report FYE2023❖
- D. Discuss/Approve CSBG Community Action Plan ❖
- E. Discuss/Approve CSBG CAP Update ❖
- F. Discuss/Approve CSBG Strategic Plan Update❖

9. Staff Reports

10. Executive Director's Report

11. Discussion Items

12. Audience Comments

13. Executive Session

The board will enter executive session pursuant to Section 551.001(1)(2)(3)(J), and Section 551.074(1)(2) of the government codes

1. Executive Director Performance Evaluation

2. Executive Director Compensation

- A. Consultation between the board and its attorney in those instances in which the board seeks the Attorney's advice with respect to pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers, and other matters where the duty of the attorney to his client requires confidentiality
- B. Discussion with respect to the purchase, exchange, lease, or value or real property, negotiated contracts, and prospective gifts or donations to the organization, when such discussion, if made public, would have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the organization.
- C. Discussion with respect to matters involving the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of an officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against such officer or employee, unless such officer or employee requests a public session.
- D. Discussion with respect to any matter specifically made confidential by law or regulation. Any other exception available by state law

14. Required Action from Executive Session

15. Adjourn Board Meeting

* Requires Board Vote

©2023 CSNT, Inc. All rights reserved. All logos and images are the protected trademarks of their respective organizations.

Community Services of Northeast Texas, Inc. Board Meeting MINUTES June 25, 2024 Linden Administrative Conference Room

Board Members Present

John Baxter, Treasurer

Representing Texana Bank, Private Sector

Cecelia Huff, Board Chair

Representing Bowie County, Poverty Sector

Judge Doug Reeder, Vice-Chair

Morris County Judge, Public Sector

Ross Hyde

Representing State Representative, Gary VanDeaver, Public Sector

Angela Thompson

Representing Bowie County, Poverty Sector

Harmony Roberson

Representing Cass County, Poverty Sector

Keri Winters, Secretary

Representing Linden-Kildare CISD, Private Sector

Board Members Absent

Dr. Arcolia Jenkins

Representing Creating Opportunities in Marion County, Private Sector

Lindsay Hergert

Representing Cass County Judge Travis Ransom, Public Sector

Sandra Wright

Representing Marion County Judge Leward Lafleur, Public Sector

Martavius Jones - Parliamentarian

Representing Camp County, Poverty Sector

CALL TO ORDER

Cecelia Huff, Board Chair called the meeting to order at 12:17 p.m.

Quorum: established 7 of 11, members present.

AGENDA

Motion: Doug Reeder, Vice Chairperson, moved to accept the 6/25/2024 agenda as presented.

Second: John Baxter, Treasurer

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

MINUTES

Motion: Ross Hyde, moved to accept the 4/23/2024 minutes and 5/9/2024 bylaws committee

meeting

Second: Harmony Roberson

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

CHAIRMAN'S COMMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS

Cecelia Huff, Board Chairman welcomed the members to meeting and wished everyone to have a good summer.

TRAINING / PRESENTATIONS

Dynamic Duo Part I. Roles and Responsibilities presented by Michelle Morehead – None, moved to the next meeting.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

- A. Planning & Evaluation Committee met on 05/15/2024
- B. Personnel No current report required at this time
- C. Finance No current report required at this time
- D. Executive –This Committee meets only when necessary
- E. Nominating No current report required at this time
- F. By Laws- Committee met on 05/09/2024 Keri Winters gave the report.

The Chair may make changes to committee rosters/develop new committees.

**Committees, other than the Executive Committee, get named by the Board Chairperson

Action Items

A. Seat New Board Member(s) None

B. Approve Consent Agenda*

- 1) Head Start/EHS & PIR Reports......(OS 5.9).....Berny Harris
- 2) Community Services Report.....(OS 5.9).....Shirley Allen
- 3) Human Resource Report.....(OS 5.9).....Charlotte Hall
- 4) Service & HS Transportation Reports......(OS 5.9)Bernie Yancey
- 5) Health Advisory Action Items
 - a. Devereux Early Childhood Assessment (DECA) Social and Emotional Screener
- 6) ERSEA Committee Action Items
 - a. Child Plus Software Database for Children and Staff information
 - b. Parent Powered Curriculum Parenting Curriculum
 - c. Parent Family and Community Engagement Goals 2024-2025
- 7) Agency School Readiness Committee Action Items
 - a. School Readiness Goals 2024-2025
 - b. Frog Street Curriculum
 - c. Head Start Speed Dial 4 EHS Ages and Stages Developmental Screener
 - d. Coaching Companion CLASS and Coaching Platform
- 8) Strategic Planning Committee Action Items
 - a. Strategic Plan including the next 5 Year Goals
- 9) Updates in the HS/EHS Operating Manual and Policies
 - a. Nutrition
 - b. Education
- 10) Head Start/Early Head Start Spring Data 2024
 - a. Circle Assessment Spring 2024
 - b. CLASS Spring 2024
 - c. School Readiness Performance Data Spring 2024
 - d. Parent Family and Community Engagement Data Spring 2024
 - e. Program Goals Spring 2024

Motion: Doug Reeder, Vice Chairman, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: Keri Winters, Secretary

All items reviewed and when asked, the Board stipulated that no further discussion was needed on the consent agenda and no items were requested to be removed.

All in favor voted ave, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

- **C. Discuss/Approve** Head Start/Early Head Start 2.35 %COLA #06CH011282/05 \$109,223/NFS \$27,306 Total \$136,529
 - 1) Head Start (\$103,161, Non-Federal Share \$25,790)
 - 2) Early Head Start (\$6,062 Non-Federal Share \$1,516)

Bernadette Harris reviewed the COLA with the members as presented.

Motion: John Baxter, Treasurer, made a motion to accept as presented

Second: Angela Thompson

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried.

D. Discuss/Approve Head Start/Early Head Start Continuation Grant #06CH011282/06 \$6,003,319 (\$4,757,017, \$45,638 T&TA, Non-Federal Share \$1,200,664, In-Direct Cost Pool \$420,680)

Bernadette Harris reviewed the Head Start Continuation Grant with the members. She explained that with the approval they are also approving a Transportation Waiver, Cost Allocation, and keeping the 10% de minimus rate.

Motion: Angela Thompson, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: Ross Hyde

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

E. Discuss/Approve Governing Board By-Laws

Keri Winters reviewed during the committee reports with the members.

Motion: Harmony Roberson, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: Doug Reeder, Vice Chairman

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

F. Discuss/Approve Personnel Policies and Procedures

- 1) #405 Employment Termination
- 2) #522 Workplace Violence Prevention
- 3) #705 Policy Clarification Dress Code

Charlotte Hall reviewed the personnel policies and procedures as presented.

Motion: John Baxter, Treasurer, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: Angela Thompson

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

G. Discuss/Approve Community Needs Assessment (O.S. 3.1 - 3.5)

Michelle Morehead reviewed the Community Needs Assessment as presented and stated that the top five needs are education, transportation, housing, healthcare and employment.

Motion: Keri Winters, Secretary, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: Doug Reeder, Vice Chairman

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

H. Discuss/Approve Board Resolution Account Closures

None

I. Discuss/Approve Cost Allocation Plan

Bernadette Harris stated that there were no changes to the cost allocation plan and it must be reviewed annually. She also explained how the budget is created and where the allocation percentages come from.

Motion: Keri Winters, Secretary, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: John Baxter, Treasurer

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

J. Discuss/Approve Customer Satisfaction Survey

Michelle Morehead reviewed the customer satisfaction survey with the members as presented. She stated that the results showed that there 58% are better able to provide for their family. She is pleased with what people are saying about CSNT.

Motion: John Baxter, Treasurer, made a motion to accept as presented.

Second: Angela Thompson

All in favor voted aye, none opposed, the motion carried unanimously

9. Staff Reports

Shelley Mitchell gave the financial reports as presented.

10. Executive Director's Report

Michelle Morehead, Executive Director, discussed the TDHCA monitoring that was conducted onsite in April. A two-page response was sent as a response to the eight-page report of findings. The final report showed one finding and one concern regarding the bylaws. The agency has been changed from a high risk to a low risk. The finding was for paying a credit of \$106.66 and was repaid to TDHCA. The staff member is no longer employed by the agency that made the error. Michelle stated that her response letter included laws and facts and TDHCA revised their findings.

11. Discussion Items

1. Discuss July Meeting

There will be a meeting on July 23, 2024 at Noon.

AUDIENCE COMMENTS

Judge Reeder and CSNT staff were wished a Happy Birthday.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The board will enter executive session pursuant to Section 551.001(1)(2)(3)(J), and section 551.074(1)(2) of the government code.

None

- a. Consultation between the board and its attorney in those instances in which the board seeks the Attorney's advice with respect to pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers, and other matters where the duty of the attorney to his client requires confidentiality.
- b. Discussion with respect to the purchase, exchange, lease, or value or real property,

- negotiated contracts, and prospective gifts or donations to the organization, when such discussion, if made public, would have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the organization.
- c. Discussion with respect to matters involving the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of an officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against such officer or employee, unless such officer or employee requests a public session.
- d. Discussion with respect to any matter specifically made confidential by law or regulation. Any other exception available by state law.

REQUIRED ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION				
None				
ADJOURN				
Motion: Angela Thompson, mot Second: Doug Reeder, Vice Cha Hearing no descent, adjournmen	nirman	n at 12:46 pm		
Approved by:	, on		, 2024	
(Board Secretary)		(Date)		



A Guide to Enhancing the Board & Executive Director Partnership



TABLE OF CONTENTS

١.	ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	5
A.	Clarifying Roles at Board and Committee Meetings	5
B.	Understanding Board Executive Sessions	6
C.	Setting the Tone at the Top	7
D.	Managing Risk and Compliance	10
E.	Managing Employee Grievances, Employment Actions, and Whistleblower Claims	10
F.	Overseeing and Managing the CAA's Financial Well-Being	11
G.	Creating the Annual Budget	12
Н.	Authorizing Expenditures and Execution of Transactions	13
l.	Establishing Roles Around the Audit	13
J.	Preparing for and Responding to a Monitoring	14
K.	Generating Funds	15
II.	BOARD COMPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT	17
A.	Understanding Board Composition Requirements	17
В.	Facilitating Strategic Board Recruitment	18
C.	Orienting and Training New Board Members	19
D.	Addressing Problematic or Ineffective Board Members	20
II.	FLOW OF INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS	23
A.	Receiving Regular Reports	23
В.	Requesting Information about Employees	23
C.	Communicating with Staff	24
D.	Communicating with Stakeholders and the General Public	24

IV.	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND BOARD CHAIR RELATIONSHIP	
A.	Establishing Roles and Responsibilities	25
B.	Cultivating a Partnership	25
C.	Developing a Board Meeting Agenda	26
V.	EXECUTIVE TRANSITIONS	27
A.	Ensuring a Succession Plan is in Place	27
В.	Managing a Voluntary Departure	27
C.	Navigating an Involuntary Departure	29
D.	Protecting against Employment Claims	30
E.	Considering an Interim Executive Director	30
F.	Determining if an Employment Agreement is a Good Idea	31
VI.	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	32
A.	Understanding IRS Compensation Requirements	32
В.	Recognizing Funding Source Compensation Requirements	35
VII.	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SUPERVISION AND EVALUATION	36
A.	Setting Check-in Meeting with the Board Chair	36
В.	Providing Assistance to the Executive Director	36
C.	Signing the Executive Director's Timesheet	36
D.	Reviewing the Executive Director	37
VIII.	CONCLUSION	39

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Engaged, informed and enthusiastic executive directors and board members working as a team are essential to the success of a Community Action Agency (CAA). Cultivating a positive, open and flexible relationship is an ongoing task for all board members and executive directors. Because of a CAA's unique tripartite board structure, preserving and growing such a relationship can sometimes be challenging. However, maintaining a balance of duties perpetuates good governance practices and ensures that the organization is engaged in activities that further its mission and achieve its funding source goals.

With this Guide, we analyze the board and executive director relationship including roles and responsibilities; board recruitment and development; internal and external communications; the executive director and board chair relationship; executive director transition; executive director compensation; and executive director supervision and evaluation. The Guide includes references to the applicable CSBG Organizational Standards and explains how the Standards as well as the topics discussed apply to both nonprofit and public CAAs. Throughout the Guide, we suggest actions each party can take to strengthen their working relationship and further the shared goal of creating a compliant and sustainable organization.

This Guidebook was created by the national Community Action Partnership and Community Action Program Legal Services, Inc. (CAPLAW), in the performance of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Office of Community Services Grant Number 90ET0437. Any opinion, findings, and conclusions, or recommendations expressed in this material are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families.

This Guidebook has been prepared for general information purposes only. The information in this Toolkit is not legal advice nor should it be relied on as such. Legal advice is dependent upon the specific circumstances of each situation.

© 2015 national Community Action Partnership

I. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

One key to a successful partnership is for the board and executive director to understand their shared and distinct responsibilities. Doing so will not only assist with managing expectations, but will also help ensure that each party maximizes the expertise and skills it brings to the leadership of the organization.

"...the board and its committees focuses on organizational oversight and developing policies that the executive director is then charged with implementing."

A. Clarifying Roles at Board and Committee Meetings

Generally, executive directors of nonprofit organizations do not also serve as board members but rather act as a resource for the board and its committees to ensure that each is receiving the information needed to successfully execute their duties. It is often recommended that an executive director <u>not</u> serve as a voting member of either the board or a board committee. Both the executive director and the board with its committees fulfill distinct roles for an organization — the board and its committees focuses on organizational oversight and developing policies that the executive director is then charged with

implementing. The federal funding that a CAA receives also makes it difficult for executive directors to serve as board members. The federal CSBG Act tripartite board structure limits the number of board seats for which a CAA's executive director may be eligible to mostly the private sector. Moreover, the Head Start Act specifically prohibits board members from receiving compensation for providing services to the organization and also prohibits the organization from employing board members and their immediate family members.¹

An executive director is usually present for meetings of the full board but not for every committee meeting and may designate other staff members with expertise about the matters being addressed to be present at some meetings. For example, the executive director may designate one or more program directors to attend program committee meetings. Alternatively, an executive director is most likely to be regularly present for executive committee meetings as that committee is typically authorized to act on behalf of the full board. The executive director may also attend certain committee meetings with other staff persons such as attending the audit and finance committee meetings with the CAA's fiscal director. In addition to designating other staff to attend committee meetings either on behalf of the executive director or with him/her, the executive director may designate a staff person to serve as a liaison for a board committee to ensure that the committee is receiving the information it needs to successfully fulfill its duties. For example, the fiscal director may not only attend the audit and finance committee meetings with the executive director, but may also act as the link between the board committee and the CAA in the intervals when the committee is not meeting.

B. Understanding Board Executive Sessions

An executive session is generally an option under a state's open meeting laws which recognizes that certain sensitive matters that arise at board meetings are best discussed in a private forum. If a CAA is subject to its state's open meeting laws, such laws usually permit boards to adjourn to an executive session, which simply means the public is excluded from that portion of the meeting. A board may also ask staff to leave the meeting. If a board is unsure whether it is subject to its state open meetings laws, it should work with an attorney in its state with expertise in government matters to determine what, if any, obligations the board may have with respect to the state's open meeting laws.

"...the list of items that can be discussed in an executive session vary from state to state..."

For a CAA subject to state open meeting laws, the list of items that can be discussed in an executive session vary from state to state, but often include pending litigation and employment-related matters. In many instances, if the board makes a decision regarding the matter, it must take the formal action in the public portion of the meeting. Because boards are comprised of human beings, they have a tendency to like secrecy, which means that other sensitive topics — topics that are not on the permitted list of matters set forth in the law which are reserved for executive sessions—often seep into the discussions during executive

sessions. As in, "As long as the door is closed, I've been meaning to raise this topic that I don't want the press to know about." Everyone present during an executive session should be sensitive to what is a permissible topic and what is not. When someone strays beyond the bounds of permissible topics, the group should immediately cut off the discussion. There may be criminal liability for violating open meeting laws or actions taken based on those discussions may be invalid.

If a CAA is not subject to its state's open meeting laws, the board may use the executive session mechanism for additional scenarios not set forth in the state's open meetings laws to exclude staff, volunteers and stakeholders from a meeting. However, calling an executive session may generate unnecessary anxiety and concern amongst such groups. The board can help alleviate any unintended reactions by being judicious about when it calls for an executive session and communicating in advance, when possible, about the need for one.



Minutes of a board meeting should indicate that the board met in executive session and usually report on the topic of discussion without providing details deemed confidential. While minutes should be maintained for executive sessions, they should be stored in a separate minute book from the minutes of the regular board meetings. If a CAA is required to comply with its state's open meeting laws, it should ensure that it is familiar with the requirements for executive session minutes. Here are a few tips for drafting and maintaining such minutes:

Establish Basis for Executive Session

If statutes or bylaws restrict what can be discussed in executive session, the minutes should state the legal basis for the executive session.

Watch Tone

Whoever drafts executive session meeting minutes should always do so with an eye toward avoiding controversy or creating potentially damaging language should the minutes become public or the subject of a discovery request from the opposing side during litigation. This is particularly true in the case of minutes for executive session meetings given the sensitive nature of the matters typically reserved for those sessions.

For tips on drafting executive session, committee and board meeting minutes, see <u>CAPLAW's Tools for Top-Notch CAAs</u>, Section 1: Making Board Meetings Matter; Part IV: Board Meeting Minutes.

C. Setting the Tone at the Top

The "tone at the top" is the message about ethics and integrity that organization leaders send through their words and behavior. Visible commitment by the organization's board and senior management is essential to cultivating a culture of compliance and high ethical standards. While a code of ethics and organizational policies are important, compliance is more than just having these documents in place. The board and executive director should model the principles in the organization's code of ethics and apply the code and organizational policies consistently. If board members and the executive director ignore or override the organization's policies, staff will get the message that the organization does not truly value

"The board should evaluate the executive director, in part, on his or her success in implementing systems that promote compliance and ethical behavior..."

compliance and ethical behavior. Keep in mind that modeling and reinforcing compliance and ethical behavior is a continuous, everyday process. The board, managers and supervisors must lead by example.

Although it is not involved in the day-to-day management of the CAA, the board plays a critical role in ensuring that the organization is operated ethically and in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and contract terms. The following are some important steps a CAA board can take in this regard:

Prioritize Ethics and Compliance

When hiring an executive director, the board should ask candidates and their references about the candidates' attitudes on ethics and compliance and about situations in which the candidates demonstrated leadership in these areas. The board should also conduct a background check of the chosen candidate before he or she is hired – including a criminal record check, a credit check, and a check on www.sam.gov to determine whether the candidate is excluded from participating in federal awards and contracts. The board should evaluate the existing or recently hired executive director on his or her success in implementing systems that promote compliance and ethical behavior throughout the organization and in addressing instances of non-compliance or unethical behavior. If the board receives reports that the executive director has engaged in or approved unethical or unlawful behavior, it should promptly investigate and take disciplinary action if it is warranted (with the advice of legal counsel as necessary).

Adopt (or Update) and Adhere to Policies

The board should adopt (or update) a code of ethics for the organization, as well as a whistleblower policy and a conflict of interest policy. Board members should adhere to these documents and those who do not should be removed or otherwise sanctioned for their failure to do so. To ensure that they understand these documents and what it means to comply with them, board members should receive regular training with examples of what to do and what not to do under the code of ethics and conflict of interest policy, as well as how to respond under the whistleblower policy if someone approaches them with a concern about the organization's compliance or ethical practices.

CAAs should, and in many cases are required to, have a written conflict of interest policy. **Standard 5.6** of the CSBG Organizational Standards requires nonprofit and public CAA board members to sign a conflict of interest policy (or other comparable local government document for public CAAs) within the past two years. Some CAAs adopt two such policies – one for board members and the other for senior staff, officers and agents who are engaged in the awarding and administering of contracts. Federal grant administration rules prohibit employees, officers and agents of federal grantees from participating in the selection, award, or administration of a procurement contract paid for with federal funds if they have a real or apparent conflict of interest. A conflict of interest occurs whenever an employee, officer or agent of the organization – a member of his or her immediate family; his or her partner; or an organization that employs or is about to employ any of those identified – has a financial or other interest in the firm selected to receive the contract. The rule also prohibits the receipt of vendor gifts other than those of nominal value.² With a written conflict of interest policy or policies, CAA boards and senior staff will be less likely to adopt an ad hoc approach to conflicts that could result in ethically questionable and potentially illegal transactions, or reasonable and defensible transactions that lack sufficient documentation to withstand scrutiny.

For suggestions on drafting and implementing conflicts of interest policies and for sample policies, see <u>CAPLAW's Tools for Top-Notch CAAs</u>, Section 5: Dealing with Conflicts of Interest; listen to

a recording of CAPLAW's <u>Roadmap for Resolving CAA Conflicts of Interest</u> webinar; and review CAPLAW's <u>sample conflict of interest policies</u> – one for board members and one for senior staff.

Additionally, **Standrd 7.7** of the CSBG Organizational Standards requires nonprofit CAA boards to approve a whistleblower policy and public CAA boards to receive a copy of an existing local government whistleblower policy at the time of orientation. For more information about whistleblower policies see Section I.E. Managing Employee Grievances, Employment Actions and Whistleblower Claims of this Guide.

Adopt and Monitor Compliance and Ethics Program

The board should adopt a resolution:

- Stating that the CAA is committed to the highest ethical standards and to complying with all applicable legal requirements;
- Outlining a program to ensure compliance with laws and ethical practices; and
- Delegating responsibility for the program's implementation to specific committees and individuals.

This resolution should be communicated to staff, volunteers and clients. The board may choose to designate a board committee (such as the audit committee) to oversee the compliance and ethics program.

Communicate the Importance of Compliance and Ethics

The board and senior management should communicate the CAA's commitment to compliance and ethical behavior through various means, such as memos, emails, newsletters, the CAA's internal website, meetings, and trainings. Both the executive director and board chair should sign written communications to staff, volunteers and clients about the organization's commitment to compliance and high ethical standards and its compliance and ethics program. In addition, the board chair, along with the executive director, should periodically address organization-wide meetings and emphasize the importance of compliance and adherence to ethical standards. If it is not practical to hold organization-wide meetings (for example, because the staff size is too large), the CAA may consider distributing a video of the board chair and executive director discussing these topics.



Take Action on Reports of Ethical or Compliance Concerns

It is the board's responsibility to take action on ethical or compliance concerns reported to it. Rather than burying their heads in the sand upon receiving such reports, board members must take affirmative steps to notify the appropriate board committee and the full board and to ensure that the concerns are investigated and addressed.

For more information about practical steps CAA boards and management can take to ensure that their organizations operate effectively and in compliance with the many requirements that apply to them, read <u>CAPLAW's Exemplary Legal Practices and Policies Guidebook</u>.

D. Managing Risk and Compliance

It is important for CAAs to have procedures and policies in place that help mitigate risks and ensure compliance. **Standard 4.6** of the CSBG Organizational Standards requires nonprofit CAAs to ensure that "an organization-wide, comprehensive risk assessment has been completed within the past 2 years and reported to the governing board." Standard 4.6 requires of public CAAs that "[t]he department complies with its local government's risk assessment policies and procedures." Generally, the board of a nonprofit CAA would either designate a board committee to oversee the conducting of an organizational risk assessment or ensure that the executive director is working with his/her staff to conduct the assessment. The board would

"The board would receive the results from the assessment and determine what actions the organization needs to take, if any, to further mitigate risk..."

receive the results from the assessment and determine what actions the organization needs to take, if any, to further mitigate risks and ensure compliance. The national Community Action Partnership, in collaboration with the Nonprofit Risk Management Center, created a risk management assessment tool and sample policies specific to CAAs which may be accessed via the Nonprofit Risk Management Center Affiliate icon on the Partnership website. The resources also include risk management webinars and the option to receive answers to your organization's specific risk questions.

E. Managing Employee Grievances, Employment Actions, and Whistleblower Claims

When formulating a staff grievance policy including policies addressing employment actions, CAAs should be careful about involving board members in an employee complaint and/or employment action. Doing so may result in the board micromanaging the organization when its focus should be on governance and oversight. Moreover, employment laws are complex and ever-changing and few board members are likely to have experience in navigating and working with those laws in relation to employee complaints and employment actions such as terminations. CAPLAW generally recommends that the board delegate the authority to handle employee actions and complaints to the executive director who will then work with his/her staff (and employment counsel, as

necessary) in doing so. The board will be involved in overseeing the development of the policies and procedures that will govern the employee complaints and/or employment actions.

A distinction is often made between employee grievances and reports of illegal or unethical activities (such as fraud or misuse of funds or property). The latter type of complaint will typically be made pursuant to the organization's whistleblower policy which is intended to capture complaints of suspected fraudulent or dishonest use of or misuse of organizational resources or property by staff, board members, consultants, volunteers or clients. Often times in a whistleblower policy, there will be the option to report complaints to the executive director, board committee or board chair; however, this option is usually limited to when a person finds it difficult to report a concern to another designated member of the management team, such as a compliance officer, fiscal director, or human resources director. For more information on board involvement in employee grievances and employment actions, we recommend two Blue Avocado articles on this subject, Should Staff Contact with the Board Be Restricted? and The Nonprofit Board's Role in HR. For more information about whistleblower claims and policies see CAPLAW's Sample Whistleblower Policies and webinars.

Employees with grievances may try to contact individual board members. The board should have a policy in place that educates the board on who fields these kinds of complaints (e.g., board chair) and the best way for a contacted board member to respond to them. CAPLAW recommends that a CAA limit its organization's personnel policies to current employees because once an employee has been terminated, there are legal avenues available if he or she believes a termination was illegal.

F. Overseeing and Managing the CAA's Financial Well-Being

Every regular board meeting should include a review of the CAA's financial statements. **Standard**8.7 of the CSBG Organizational Standards for private CAAs requires the board to receive "financial reports at

"The executive director is responsible for ensuring that the board receives the information it needs to maintain the financial viability of the organization."

each regular meeting that include the following: 1. [o]rganization-wide report on revenue and expenditures that compares budget to actual, categorized by program; and 2. [b]alance sheet/statement of financial position." For public CAAs, the Standard requires the tripartite board/advisory body to receive "financial reports at each regular meeting, for those program(s) the body advises, as allowed by local government procedure." Section 4. Getting the Most Out of Your Financial Statements of CAPLAW's Tools for Top Notch CAAs not only includes a discussion of the different financial statements a board reviews (including those required by the Standards) but also recommends a five-step approach to a regular review of such financial statements and explains topics that would be discussed as part of the review.

The executive director is responsible for ensuring that the board receives the information it needs to maintain the financial viability of the organization. The executive director will usually designate the fiscal director as the staff person who works with the finance committee to prepare monthly interim financial statements to be used as a tool to monitor the CAA's financial health. The finance committee should work with the fiscal director and executive director, as necessary, to ensure that financial statements are up-to-date and comprehensive and that the reporting shows both

budgeted and actual revenue and expenses. For more information about the executive director's role in the fiscal leadership of the organization, read the <u>Fiscal Fundamentals for Executive Directors</u> toolkit developed by the national Community Action Partnership in partnership with WIPFLi.

The executive director, fiscal director and the finance committee will work together to identify ways to present what can often be complex financial information so that all board members can understand the information presented, receive an accurate view of the organization's current and projected future financial standing, ask questions about the CAA's financial well-being, and use the information to make strategic decisions. One option for doing so is to develop financial dashboards. A dashboard is typically a brief snapshot of the entire organization at a fixed point in time – like a car dashboard that gives an instant update on many important factors (speed, gas left in the tank, engine temperature, etc.). An organizational dashboard is similar: it gives important information to decision makers such as executives and boards in a quick-read way. The purpose of a dashboard is to easily and visually raise strategic questions which, when answered, would lead to more informed decisions. Thus, they should be comprehensive, but not so detailed as to hinder high-level, strategic questions and should include explanations of the metrics used to provide the data summaries that make-up the snapshot. For information on creating an effective dashboard – one that distills data to key measures and makes meaningful comparisons to benchmarks and goals – listen to CAPLAW's webinar Constructing a Community Action Agency Dashboard.

G. Creating the Annual Budget

The annual operating budget is a comprehensive financial plan that projects all income and all expenses that are expected to be received or incurred within a CAA's fiscal year. **Standard 8.9** of the CSBG Organizational Standards requires for private CAAs that the board "annually approves an organization-wide budget" and for public CAAs that the "tripartite board/advisory body has input as allowed by local governmental procedure into the CSBG budget process."

The annual budget fulfills two key functions: planning and authorization. As a planning tool initiated by management, the budget functions as a comprehensive plan to obtain and use resources to fulfill the CAA's mission and meet all contractual and legal obligations. Board approval of the annual operating budget authorizes management to proceed with implementation of the plan. Board approval also provides evidence that board members are fulfilling their responsibilities to direct the use of resources to fulfill the CAA's mission and ensure compliance with legal obligations. In



addition to the key planning and authorization functions, the annual operating budget functions as an important internal control when it is used as a point of comparison with actual financial results achieved, facilitating identification of errors or irregularities and needed corrections. Section 3. Creating the Annual Operating Budget of <u>CAPLAW's Tools for Top-Notch CAAs</u> walks through how a CAA creates an annual budget and the roles that the board and the CAA's executive management each play in doing so.

H. Authorizing Expenditure of Funds and Execution of Transactions

The board will work with the executive director to develop a policy that establishes who has the authority to financially and contractually bind the organization, i.e., sign checks; order a wire transfer; sign contracts such as leases, loan, vendor or grant agreements. The finance committee of the board will often work with the executive director and finance director to ensure that the policies establish a framework of internal controls to safeguard funds and minimize the risk of fraud, waste and abuse. The policy, which is adopted by board resolution, usually details the authorized signatories for the organization and what type of transactions will be subject to the policy, including threshold amounts. The types of contracts and thresholds will vary according to the size and type of CAA. A CAA's bylaws will either specify who is authorized to sign checks and contracts or state that the board will specify by a resolution who is authorized to sign them.

I. Establishing Roles Around the Audit

A single or program-specific audit is required if a CAA expends \$750,000 or more in federal funds during the CAA's fiscal year. If a CAA's spending falls below this threshold, it is exempt from the federal audit requirements but must make its records available for review or audit by federal awarding agency officials, a pass-through entity, and the General Accounting Office.³ Standards 8.1 through 8.5 of the CSBG Organizational Standards requires of private CAAs that:

- The organization's annual audit (or audited financial statements) is completed by a Certified Public Accountant on time in accordance with federal grant laws and/or state audit threshold requirements;
- All findings from the prior year's annual audit have been assessed by the organization and addressed where the board deems it appropriate;
- The organization's auditor presents the audit to the board;
- The board formally receives and accepts the audit; and
- The organization has solicited bids for its audit within the past 5 years.

The same Standards also exist for public CAAs with the exceptions that local government procedures must be followed including with respect to the audit bid process and the tripartite board/advisory board is notified of the audit and audit findings but is not required to approve it.

Generally, an audit is designed to confirm that the assertions underlying the CAA's financial statements are correct. In its oversight role, a nonprofit CAA's board is charged with retaining an

"Generally, an audit is designed to confirm that the assertions underlying the CAA's financial statements are correct." auditor, reviewing the audit and reports, and assessing actions to be taken pursuant to audit findings. Conversely, the executive director works with his or her financial staff to prepare the CAA's financial statements for the audit. For more information about the executive director's role in preparing for an audit versus the board's responsibilities with respect to forming an audit committee, selecting the auditor and reviewing the audit and management letter, see Section 2. Improving a CAA's Financial Capacity in CAPLAW's Tools for Top-Notch CAAs toolkit. The national

Community Action Partnership also offers board members the guide <u>Audit Essentials: What Every Board Needs to Know</u> which walks through the terms and processes of an audit report and how to read financial statements.

J. Preparing for and Responding to Monitoring

Monitoring preparation is an ongoing task that begins when funding is initially received. The degree of involvement by the board and staff in preparing for a monitoring will be influenced by the amount of funding the CAA receives and the funding source requirements. Generally, the board will create one or more committees to help oversee compliance with different funding source requirements. The executive director should obtain, as soon as possible, the monitoring tool, if one exists, and review it and the funding contract with the board committee and identify senior management such as the fiscal director and program director(s) that will be facilitating and managing the program(s). The executive director should designate a member of the senior management team, most likely a program director, who will develop and facilitate the program(s) associated with the funding and manage compliance with funding source requirements. The monitoring tool and funding source requirements should be used by the executive director and senior staff as a guide in the development of internal procedures and processes that will govern the use of the funds received.

For funding sources with more involved and extensive monitoring procedures, an executive director should work with senior management and a board committee to prepare responses to monitoring questions and locate information that monitors may want to review. For such reviews, a CAA may



consider placing information in binders so that it is easily accessible and well-organized. If the funding source interviews board members as part of the review process, the executive director and board members may consider conducting mock interviews with each other to ensure that the board is well-informed and able to offer concise and direct answers to a monitor's inquiries. The executive director should also ensure that the board is regularly receiving financial and program reports from management.

With respect to CSBG funds, since the Organizational Standards will be impacting the monitoring conducted by a state CSBG office, the following tools and resources developed by the national Community Action Partnership and available on its website may be used by a board committee and the executive director along with senior management to assess a CAA's level of compliance with the Standards:

- Self-Assessment Tool Nonprofit CAAs
- Self-Assessment Tool Public CAAs
- Organizational Standards and Community Action Boards
- YouTube videos for Boards
- Schedule of Actions for Boards
- CSBG Organizational Standards Technical Assistance Guides and Webinars (one for each of the nine categories)

Once the monitoring is completed, board members, and/or a board committee, along with the executive director, should review the monitoring report and formulate an approach for responding to it. The executive director with the help of senior staff will facilitate the corrective actions, if any need to be taken. The board should ensure that either a board committee or the executive director via a senior staff person is charged with managing report deadlines and regularly communicating with the funding source regarding the CAA's response to the report. For more information about the CSBG monitoring process, see Monitoring Map for CAAs: A Guide for Navigating the Monitoring Review Process developed by the national Community Action Partnership in collaboration with CAPLAW.

K. Generating Funds

A key responsibility of the board is to ensure that the organization is financially sustainable. Because many CAAs rely heavily on federal and state funding which is restricted (i.e., may only be used for grant purposes) and often subject to political whims, it is important that boards focus on ways to continually bring in unrestricted as well as restricted funds. Financial sustainability discussions are a crucial piece in a board's strategic planning process. **Standards 6.1 through 6.5** of the CSBG Organizational Standards for both nonprofit and public CAAs focus on an organization's strategic plan and require, among other tasks, that it be approved by the board within the past five years and reviewed at least

annually by the board in relation to progress updates. The national Community Action Partnership offers a few CAA-specific strategic planning resources on its <u>website</u> including:

- Strategic Planning: The Basic Elements of Developing an Organizational Strategic Plan webinar and
- Are We Results Oriented? guide and webinar.

Boards will often form a committee referred to as a fundraising, resource development or sustainability committee to spearhead the organization's revenue-generating efforts. This committee will work via the executive director with senior staff charged with managing the organization's fundraising and resource development activities. Generally, the committee and the executive director will develop a plan for obtaining additional funds which may include soliciting donations from individuals and corporations; engaging in activities such as special events, poverty simulations or social enterprises; and applying for operational as well as programmatic grants from foundations.

The committee, working with the full board, will be instrumental in identifying potential fundraising prospects and accompanying staff on key visits with funders. Board members may also assist with thanking donors, when appropriate. Another important action board members can take is to financially contribute to the organization. Some foundations require that every board member donate money to the organization – even if it is just \$1 – to receive foundation support. Lastly, always being an advocate for the organization – regularly sharing with peers and the general public the value the CAA adds to the community – is a way to stimulate support that may lead to financial gains for the organization. A few informative and instructive resources and articles about a board's and the executive director's roles in fundraising include:

- Getting to 100% Board Giving article by Jan Masaoka of Blue Avocado;
- Grassroots Institute for Fundraising Training website which includes both free
 and paid fundraising resources focused on promoting the connection between
 fundraising, social justice and movement-building; and
- Articles about fundraising for both boards and executive directors on the <u>Guidestar website</u>, which not only provides information about tax-exempt nonprofit organizations but also about the issues facing these organizations.

II. BOARD COMPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT

For both public and nonprofit CAAs, the federal CSBG Act dictates much of the board's composition and selection of its members. A nonprofit CAA board selects its own members subject to the democratically selected low-income representatives that comprise one-third of the board's composition. Members of a public CAA board are either selected by the local governing officials (i.e., city council, county commissioners) pursuant to recommendations by the board or by the board if the authority to do so is delegated to it by the local governing officials. Either way, the selection of public CAA board members is also subject to the democratic selection process for the low-income representatives. Even though board composition and development is a responsibility of the board, both public and nonprofit CAA boards will often solicit the executive director's assistance in identifying and educating new board members. While an executive director will not vote in the actual election of board members, he/she offers invaluable operational insights and perspectives for the board that can help guide its process and growth.

A. Understanding Board Composition Requirements

The tripartite board requirement remains a hallmark of Community Action. Like its predecessor, the Economic Opportunity Act, the federal CSBG Act generally requires that each CAA have a tripartite board made up of three sectors — representatives of the low-income people being served, elected or appointed public officials, and other major groups and interests in the community. The purpose of this requirement is to obtain input from each of the sectors on community needs, resources and program effectiveness. Federal Office of Community Services Information Memorandum 82 provides further federal guidance on tripartite boards. Although neither states nor CAAs are bound by this guidance, they may find it helpful in understanding the composition, role and responsibilities of the tripartite board. These issues are often also addressed in state CSBG or Community Action laws and regulations, which must be consistent with federal and state law.

"Other sources of law governing CAA tripartite boards vary depending on whether a CAA is a nonprofit corporation or a government entity." Other sources of law governing CAA tripartite boards vary depending on whether a CAA is a nonprofit corporation or a government entity. A nonprofit CAA's board is governed by the nonprofit corporation law in its state, while a public CAA's tripartite board is governed by whatever authority the local governing body (such as a city council or board of county commissioners) may have delegated to it through a local ordinance or other official act. CAPLAW has created self-training tools for both nonprofit and public CAAs to provide boards of each with the guidance and information they need to teach themselves about the federal CSBG

Act tripartite board composition and selection requirements. The tools consists of questions, quizzes, exercises and resources that the board is instructed to work through with the help of a board member facilitator.

Other grant programs may impose board requirements. For example, the boards of CAAs with Head Start programs are subject to the Head Start Act's requirements on composition, responsibilities and conflicts of interest. Additionally, the board of a CAA that operates a community health center or intends to qualify as a Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) rules must meet additional composition requirements.

B. Facilitating Strategic Board Recruitment

Recruiting effective and committed board members requires a proactive, ongoing process of searching for those who have the time, talent, and willingness to help achieve the CAA's mission. A board should continually refer to its bylaws and other board policies that set forth board recruitment requirements and procedures to ensure that it maintains compliance with its governing documents. Effective board recruitment involves minimizing vacancies and ensuring compliance with board composition requirements.

Establishing a board governance committee that is regularly and actively engaged in board recruitment is one way to help minimize vacancies and facilitate a more targeted approach to recruitment. A governance committee typically oversees the selection process, researches and recommends candidates, and facilitates and maintains board self-assessments. The committee may engage the executive director as well as senior staff via the executive director to help identify potential board members, i.e., such as current and former clients; other social service providers; etc. Such committees are typically set forth in a CAA's bylaws and may also provide for the "care and feeding" of the board, i.e., identifying and coordinating the training and education of board members.

"A board matrix is another way for the board to track its current needs and identify the characteristics it is seeking in future members."

Understanding your CAA's leadership needs is an important initial step in the recruitment process. By doing so, the board strengthens its ability to strategically seek out those who have attributes, skills, abilities, and background to fill those needs. Conducting individual and group assessments of the board will help the board track its current characteristics and identify the attributes the board needs to look for in future candidates. Sample assessment tools are available on CAPLAW's website. A board matrix is another way for the board to track its current needs and identify the characteristics it is seeking in future members. When

using a matrix, it is important that other factors, in addition to those identified by the matrix, be considered in board selection to ensure that the board attracts and retains members who can actually do what the board needs. Meeting certain criteria does not always equate to actually accomplishing goals.

A board may chose to form an advisory board populated with potential board members as a way to groom prospective members and minimize vacancies. If an advisory board will be used to fill vacancies, the board must ensure that the advisory board members are chosen through the selection procedures set forth in the CAA's bylaws. For example, if an advisory board member

is to fill low-income representative sector seats, the advisory board member must have been democratically selected to serve on the board pursuant to the procedures established by the board.

The board, or governance committee, and the executive director will often work together to create a board recruitment packet with information that will help candidates understand the organization as well as board responsibilities and expectations. Board recruitment packets may include an overview of the organization's programs, an annual report, a summary of board committees and a board member job description. The packet should also include a board application. Asking candidates to complete an application will help the CAA maintain compliance with recruitment requirements and policies as well as expose conflicts of interest that may prevent any board member from serving. For example, if a nonprofit CAA imposes a residency requirement for all board members in its bylaws, then a board application should ask prospective board members if they meet the requirement. Also, if a CAA receives Head Start funds, the application may ask if any of prospective board member's immediate family members work for the CAA to ensure compliance with the Head Start requirement prohibiting board members and their immediate family from being employed by a Head Start grantee. Moreover, it is a good idea for the application to ask if a board member has been debarred or suspended from working on federal grants. A sample CAA board application is available on CAPLAW's website.

C. Orienting and Training New Board Members

"...the board plays the lead role for orienting and training board members, but executive directors also play a vital support role in partnering with the board to educate and assimilate new members."

As with recruitment, the board plays the lead role for orienting and training board members, but executive directors also play a vital support role in partnering with the board to educate and assimilate new members. The executive director and his/her staff are responsible for, and are most familiar with, the day-to-day management of the organization and its programs. They are often in the best position to provide materials and information on the history of the organization and goals and outcomes of its current programs and services; an overview of operational policies and procedures; a review of the organization's funding sources and financial condition; and an explanation of organizational structure.

Standard 5.7 of the CSBG Organizational Standards requires both nonprofit and public CAA boards to establish a process to provide structured orientation for board members within six months of members being seated on the board. Topics to consider including in board member orientation are:

- Overview of the roles and responsibilities of board members;
- Structure and purpose of board meetings;
- Fiduciary duties of nonprofit board members;
- Expectations of board membership and list of upcoming, scheduled board meetings;

- Overview of the organization the mission, the programs, the funding received, key staff, the latest strategic plan, results of the organization's last community needs assessment, etc.;
- Tripartite board requirement and any other specific board composition requirements;
- Standing and current ad hoc board committees;
- Bylaws with a brief discussion of the main provisions (quorum, voting thresholds, removal, alternates, vacancies, etc.);
- Articles of incorporation for nonprofit CAAs and local ordinances/rules, if any exist, governing public CAAs;
- All applicable board policies and procedures, including, among others, the conflict of interest policy, whistleblower policy, and low-income board member democratic selection procedures; and
- · Brief bios of board members and senior staff.

We recommend reviewing Section 1: Making Board Meetings Matter from CAPLAW's <u>Tools for Top-Notch CAAs</u> for more information on the different topics often addressed in board orientation.

D. Addressing Problematic or Ineffective Board Members

It is not unusual for boards to struggle with difficult board members – for example, board members who never attend meetings, those who aggressively promote their own views without regard to others' input, or those who create divisive factions on the board. CAA boards are particularly susceptible to tensions among board members because of the variety of individuals selected from various sectors of the community pursuant to the federal CSBG Act's tripartite board composition requirements. When a board becomes fractured such that business of the board cannot be conducted as usual, the board should consider working with the executive director to locate an independent, third party consultant who can help identify the root of the problem(s) and potentially mediate a solution. In addition to bringing in an outsider, the inclusion of the following provisions in a CAA's bylaws may help the board manage difficult board member scenarios:



Board member terms

Board terms are an easy way to help manage how long someone serves as a board member. A term is the number of years that a board member serves on the board before he or she must be reelected or democratically selected to serve for another term. For nonprofit CAAs, if the bylaws are silent as to term length, state nonprofit corporate law will often specify a default term length of one year. The local ordinances governing public CAAs, if any exist, may include default terms lengths for public CAA board members. Additionally, a state's CSBG laws may impose term length requirements that apply to both nonprofit and public CAA board members. For example, some states require that the public sector board members be appointed annually to the board while low-income and community representative board members may have multiple-year terms. Three-years is a common length chosen by organizations for a board member term.

Board member term limits

Term limits restrict the number of consecutive terms a board member may serve and can offer another, more routine way of managing board membership. For instance, the bylaws may state that board members may serve two, five-year terms before they must step down from the board. Term limits are generally not required for CAA boards; thus, some CAAs have chosen to adopt them while other CAAs have not. State nonprofit corporate laws do not usually set term limits for board members of nonprofit corporations. Moreover, local ordinances do not typically require them for public CAA boards. However, state CSBG laws may impose term limits for board members from each of the three sectors of the tripartite board or just certain sectors.

The advantages of term limits include: insuring a variety of perspectives on the board; helping an organization expand its base of contacts for fundraising and other purposes; educating a larger sector of the community about the organization and its programs; preventing a concentration of power among a small group of long-time leaders; and providing a diplomatic means of getting difficult or ineffective board members off the board. On the other hand, the disadvantages include: the loss of board members with specific expertise regarding the organization's programs; the loss of institutional memory; and the difficulty of regularly identifying and recruiting new board members.

Removal of board members

Removal provisions in bylaws enables the board to manage particularly disruptive board members pursuant to established procedures. For nonprofit CAAs, most states' nonprofit corporate laws include provisions around removal and may require specific language to be included in the bylaws for certain types of removal to occur automatically, such as removal for failure to attend meetings. State nonprofit corporate laws may also impose on nonprofit CAAs other parameters for removal of directors. For example, in some states, a board member may only be

removed by a super-majority of the board (for example, a majority of the board members in office, rather than a majority of board members at a meeting at which a quorum is present). Even when not required by state law, many organizations require that removal be approved by a super-majority of the board. This helps temper the use of removal of directors for political or personal reasons, and allows removal to be used only in extreme and justified circumstances. A public CAA board should check its local ordinances to determine what, if any, parameters may exist with regards to board member removal.

One issue to consider with removal provisions is whether to require removal to be "for cause" or to permit removal "without cause." Allowing removal without cause can diminish internal discord regarding the removal and help avert possible claims of character defamation since no potentially negative allegations regarding the individual are necessary. On the other hand, a removal without cause provision could be used for political purposes or could result in those with dissenting views not voicing their opinions at board meetings, thereby reducing debate among board members. If the removal of a director is contemplated and it is anticipated that the person may challenge the removal, legal counsel should be consulted.

Resignation of board members

Enabling a board member to resign, as opposed to being removed, is a less aggressive and more congenial way to manage difficult board member scenarios. A state's nonprofit corporate laws may include parameters governing resignation provisions in a nonprofit CAA's bylaws. Public CAA's should, again, check local ordinances to determine if they include any such parameters.

For sample bylaws provisions specific to CAAs, consider ordering <u>CAPLAW's Bylaws Toolkit</u>.

III. FLOW OF INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS

An effective organization is one in which the executive director is providing the board with the information it needs to meet its responsibilities and proper channels of communications between the board, staff, stakeholders and general public have been established and are followed consistently.

A. Receiving Regular Reports

"The executive director should provide reports to the full board at its regular meetings and, as needed, between regular meetings..."

The executive director should provide reports to the full board at its regular meetings and, as needed, between regular meetings either to the full board or to one or more board committees. In general, the reports will allow the executive director to share current issues, potential problems, achievements and upcoming events. They also provide an opportunity for the executive director to focus the board's attention on critical issues facing the organization, such as an anticipated cash flow issue due to delay in reimbursement from state funding sources, or an opportunity to initiate a new program or earned income venture, or to purchase

or renovate a building. **Standards 5.9 and 8.7** of the CSBG Organizational Standards for nonprofit and public CAAs require boards to receive programmatic and financial (revenue/expenditure with budget to actual comparisons, balance sheet) reports at each regular board meeting. The executive director will work with senior staff and board committees to help generate the reports and present them to the full board.

B. Requesting Information about Employees

It is not generally appropriate for individual board members to request or receive personal employment information about a specific employee such as the employee's salary, fringe benefits, background check, evaluation results, or leave requests. Rather, the board oversees information and policies that apply to employees generally such as personnel policies, wage comparability studies and organization-wide salary scales. In some cases, the board may authorize a committee to consider and make a recommendation to the full board about such issues. In certain cases, the committee may need to have access to personal employee data, for example, if it is reviewing staff salaries to ensure that staff are being paid within the salary ranges for their positions. Board members should only be given access to such information as part of their authorized board duties and have a fiduciary duty to keep that information confidential. Such information should be shared with other board members only on a need to know basis in connection with official board business. Some types of sensitive employee information, such as health or financial information, may be protected by various confidentiality or privacy laws and would not generally be available to board members.

C. Communicating with Staff

Since the executive director is the only employee who reports directly to the board and is authorized by the board to hire, fire and manage other staff, board members should generally communicate with other staff about organizational business through the executive director. When an individual board member circumvents the executive director by contacting a staff member directly rather than communicating through the executive director or other established channels of communication, such action often diminishes the executive director's authority and strains the executive director/board relationship.

"...board members should generally communicate with other staff about organizational business through the executive director."

Implementing a board/staff communication policy is one way to educate all board members about the proper communication process and can serve as a point of reference if confusion arises. The policy should reinforce that the executive director is the one employee who reports directly to the board and that board members should speak directly with individual staff members only when authorized by the board or the executive director. The policy would outline the limited situations when it would be appropriate for board members to consult directly with staff. Examples of such situations would include: (1) board members communicating with an administrative staff person (sometimes referred to as a board liaison) who coordinates the logistics of board and committee meetings; (2) board committee members communicating with staff liaisons (for example, finance committee members communicating with the finance director) about committee business; or (3) personnel committee members communicating with staff to gather input for the executive director's evaluation if the board's evaluation process includes obtaining such input. Such a policy on board-staff communication is intended to prevent the board from micro-managing the staff and circumventing the executive director's role in supervising the organization's staff.

A complaint of suspected or potential fraud, misuse of resources or property, or discrimination or harassment involving the executive director would be reported to the board or a designated board committee in accordance with the organization's whistleblower policy. Procedures detailing the process for reporting such claims should be included in that policy. For more information about whistleblower policies see Section I.E. Managing Employee Grievances, Employment Actions and Whistleblower Claims of this Toolkit.

D. Communicating with Stakeholders and the General Public

The board should work with the executive director to establish a communication policy or plan for disseminating information to stakeholders and the general public. The policy/plan would not only apply to publicizing successful programs and organizational achievements but would also address ways to respond to negative publicity and press requests. Generally, such policies and plans designate either the board chair or the executive director as the one who communicates on behalf of the organization with regard to organization-wide matters whereas a senior staff person is often designated to facilitate daily/routine communications such as blog updates or press releases about new programs. The Colorado Nonprofit Association offers multiple resources and toolkits for developing general, crisis and social media communication policies and plans. Also, the Nonprofit Risk Management Center offers a Q&A specifically addressing crisis communications.

IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND BOARD CHAIR RELATIONSHIP

The board chair and executive director work closely together to ensure that all board members and senior management are receiving the information they need to execute their respective responsibilities.

A. Establishing the Roles and Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the board chair often include:

- Working with the executive director (and executive committee, if applicable) to establish the agenda for the board meetings;
- Acting as the liaison between the executive director and the full board;
- Serving as the spokesperson for the full board (if so authorized by the board);
- Convening and conducting regular board meetings and ensuring a quorum is established;
- Moderating and facilitating board discussions to encourage varying points of view: and
- Helping to organize and lead new member orientations (with the executive director and governance committee).

The specific positions, titles and duties of an organization's officers, including the board chair, should be set forth in the CAA's bylaws. For nonprofit CAAs, the majority of state nonprofit corporate laws require officers of a nonprofit board to include a president, secretary, and treasurer, in addition to any other position that the board may wish to designate. A board president is often referred to by a CAA as the board chair. If state nonprofit corporate laws require a president, but a CAA has a board chair, the CAA should specify in its bylaws that the board chair serves as the president for purposes of the state's corporate laws. The board chair, along with the other officers, is elected by the board. Officers typically serve for an annual term but the bylaws may specify a longer term. For public CAAs, a local ordinance, if one exists, that establishes the authority of the tripartite board and its bylaws will govern the designation and selection of officers of the board.

B. Cultivating a Partnership

The chair may work with the executive director to help him/her navigate and achieve the goals and objectives established for the executive director by the full board or a board committee. The chair often serves as a sounding board for the concerns of the executive director. When the executive director is under stress or experiencing some difficulty in communicating with board members,

the chair can provide a unique perspective as a leader representing the whole organization. The chair often understands the motivations and styles of the board members and can provide suggestions for working with them. The executive director will ensure that the board chair has all the information he/she needs to enable board members to fulfill their responsibilities of making reasonable, informed decisions on behalf of the organization and acting in the best interest of the organization.

C. Developing a Board Meeting Agenda

"Board meetings should give precedence to topics and discussions that relate to a board's main responsibilities..." Meeting agendas should be drafted with care by the board chair (or executive committee) in consultation with the executive director, with an eye to involving the board in decision-making on critical issues and providing information the board needs to make informed decisions. Board meetings should give precedence to topics and discussions that relate to a board's main responsibilities which generally include: (1) mission and programs; (2) governance and organizational policies; (3) financial matters; (4) risk management; and (5) executive hiring, compensation and performance. While the board may not discuss each of these matters at every meeting, one or all of these topics will often appear on the agenda. Some items

– such as the date, time and location of the meeting; roll call/quorum determination; review and approval of the prior meeting's minutes; and a report on the CAA's financial condition – will generally be on every regular meeting agenda.

If the CAA is subject to its state's open meeting law, it may be required to include certain items on its board meeting agendas. However, this does not mean that the agenda for every meeting must be the same. Instead, the agenda should emphasize issues facing the organization that are particularly essential for the board to be aware of or to decide – such as whether to purchase a new facility rather than lease, how to respond to monitoring findings, or what action to take in light of a proposal to cut certain federal funding. In each of these cases, staff may provide the board with short, concise memos with sufficient information to enable board members to ask questions, have an informed discussion, request additional information, and, where necessary, make a decision that will help the CAA fulfill its mission. In fact, some boards include the CAA's mission statement on the agenda to help the board evaluate the impact of its decisions on the mission. For more information about ways to improve your meeting agendas see the following articles from the nonprofit magazine Blue Avocado: *And Now for a Different Type of Board Agenda* and *Three Instant Improvements for Board Agendas and Accountability*.



V. EXECUTIVE TRANSITIONS

Managing an executive transition is one of the biggest responsibilities a board may be called on to fulfill. Because CAA board members are from diverse backgrounds with a mix of expertise and experiences, it is essential that the board invest in educating all of its members about the executive transition process including the legal implications of the employment actions that are involved. Even for public CAA boards which may not be authorized to hire or fire an executive director, the board will still be involved in the process via recommendations it makes to the local governing body regarding the performance of the executive director and the needs of the CSBG program.

A. Ensuring a Succession Plan is in Place

Succession planning is key to the future sustainability of organizational leadership. **Standard 4.5** of the CSBG Organizational Standards specifically requires nonprofit CAAs to have in place a written succession plan, approved by the board, for the executive director position. The plan must contain procedures for covering an emergency/unplanned departure and a short-term absence of three months or less, as well as the process for filling a permanent vacancy. Even though a public CAA board must adhere to its local government's policies around interim appoints and filling of vacancies, the board should consider conveying to the local governing body the type of leader it believes is needed to effectively manage the CSBG funds and/or programs. The national Community Action Partnership has the following executive transition resources available on its website, which include information about developing or updating a succession plan and managing a transition from one executive director to the next:



B. Managing a Voluntary Departure

In many cases, a transition will be caused by the executive director's voluntary retirement or departure to take another position. However, there may be some cases where the board and executive director can no longer work productively together. Ideally, an executive director who is not working out will agree to leave of his or her own volition and without acrimony. This type of

voluntary departure is advantageous to both the executive director and the organization, allowing the executive to pursue new opportunities and both parties to avoid negative publicity. The board may wish to offer some form of severance pay to encourage the executive director to resign and to receive from him/her a release of future employment law claims against the organization.

Severance pay is generally defined as a payment in addition to regular salary and wages made to employees whose employment is being terminated. Under the Uniform Guidance, severance pay is an allowable cost (i.e., federal funds may be used to pay for it) if it is either required by: (1) law, (2) an employment agreement, (3) an established policy that constitutes, in effect, an implied agreement on the organization's part, or (4) the circumstances of the particular employment.⁴ An employment agreement may specify the kind and amount of severance to be paid in the event of a termination. The agreement may also specify what the executive will do in exchange for that severance, such as agree to a release of future claims against the employer.

The Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) issued multiple administrative decisions prior to the enactment of the Uniform Guidance that offer some insight into how severance pay provisions have been interpreted/applied pursuant to the Office of Management and Budget circulars. The following are some main takeaways from those decisions:

- "Circumstances of the particular employment" criterion has been interpreted to apply only where a severance payment is made in exchange for some benefit to the grantee from the employee's departure;
- Severance pay was allowed where the grantee might be harmed if an incompetent executive director were to remain in that position for a full term; and⁶
- Organizations that want to make severance payments to employees leaving voluntarily should plan ahead and adopt a policy that permits them to do so or enter into an agreement with the employee (preferably at the beginning of his/ her employment) that spells out any severance payments to be made upon the employee's departure.⁷

It is important to note that the analysis that led to the administrative decisions is based somewhat on the facts and circumstance of the particular scenario at issue. Lastly, even if severance payments are not deemed an allowable cost, the board might still consider paying for them with unrestricted funds in exchange for a release of claims relating to the departure.



C. Navigating an Involuntary Departure

If the board is considering terminating an executive director, the board should ensure it follows the organization's procedures and policies to mitigate potential liability in relation to the termination. Steps a board may take in this regard include:

Form a board committee to investigate

Consider forming a board committee or working with an outside party to assess or investigate the reasons triggering board concerns about the executive director's performance. The committee or outside party will typically meet with the executive director as soon as possible to inform him/her of the concerns or allegations raised, ask for the executive director's perspective on the allegations or concerns and explain the process for assessing or investigating the situation.

Consider placing the executive director on leave

While conducting an investigation of allegations against the executive director, it may be necessary to place the executive director on short-term leave. If leave will be paid, care should be taken to avoid paying the executive director from any federal grant funds, since he/she will not be performing work benefiting any federal grants while on leave. If considering unpaid leave, it is advisable to consult with an employment law attorney familiar with the federal Fair Labor Standards Act and your state's employment laws to ensure that the unpaid time would not result in an impermissible deduction from the executive director's compensation.

Seek advice from an employment law attorney

With any potential termination an organization must be careful to avoid violating any anti-discrimination laws or the terms of an employment agreement (if one exists). An attorney can help the organization navigate the legal requirements and identify the best possible resolution of issues while minimizing the risk of future claims by the departing executive director. The attorney's negotiation skills may also be useful in discussing a severance package with the departing executive director, if one will be offered.

Communicate the decision with grace and care

Any public announcement of the executive director's departure should come only from a person or persons authorized to speak on the board's behalf. Staff, volunteers, the community, and stakeholders such as funding sources may require some reassurance that the board has a succession plan in place and is preparing for the next stage in the transition to a new executive.

D. Protecting against Employment Claims

Before investigating any alleged misconduct or performance difficulty with an executive director, a board committee should determine if the organization has in place the following insurance policies and also be familiar with them:

Directors & Officer ("D & O") Policy

This policy protects board members and officers from actions resulting from actual or alleged erroneous decisions made in the course of their duties. The decisions are often referred to as wrongful acts and may involve a failure to provide services, a mismanagement of assets, and employment-related issues. Some policies include the cost of defending a claim but only up to a certain limit. Board members should be familiar with what types of claims are covered, particularly in the employment area and what constitutes a wrongful employment act under the policy.

Employment Practices Liability Policy

This policy covers wrongful acts arising from employment actions that usually involve actual or alleged claims of a wrongful termination, discrimination, sexual harassment, and retaliation. The board should understand the limits of this policy as well as how it operates with respect to the D&O policy. The organization's insurance broker should be able to explain what the policy covers, i.e., costs of legal defense, certain employment acts, etc.

E. Considering an Interim Executive Director

Several reasons exist as to why an organization may consider hiring an interim executive director. Employing one enables the board to thoroughly plan and assess what kind of leader the organization needs and wants. If the current executive director leaves the organization prior to the completion of the hiring process, the interim can handle the day-to-day management of the organization. An interim position may be filled internally by an existing staff member or externally by an individual willing to step in as acting executive director until a permanent person can be hired. An external interim executive director may be effective if your organization is struggling with its current staff, finances or programs; if major board or other changes need to be made; or if there



is not general agreement about the type of leader the organization needs. For more information about using an interim executive director, see the resource, Interim Executive Directors: The Power in the Middle by CompassPoint and the article, Interim Leadership: Looking Beyond the Executive Director by The Bridgespan Group.

F. Determining if an Employment Agreement is a Good Idea

In most states an employee is considered "at will" which means he/she can be terminated at any time by his/her employer with or without cause. An employment agreement will break that "at will" status. However, organizations sometimes prefer entering into agreements with new executive directors because doing so helps to attract talented candidates. Some additional pros and cons to consider with regards to using an employment agreement include:

Pros	Cons
Establishes commitment to hire the candidate	Terminating, even for cause, may be difficult and expensive
Provides continuity and stability	Enforceability is uncertain since a specific performance judgment (i.e., requiring the executive director to stay) is unlikely
Minimizes risk with respect to termination package and exit strategy	Flexibility is limited if needs of the organization change
Clearly ties compensation to specific performance goals	Making a change such as renegotiations may be time consuming
Protects assets and reputations	May create a perception problem if separation is due to unfavorable circumstances and executive director is receiving a beneficial termination package
Lays out expectations, compensation and benefits	Will incur legal fees to draft and potentially terminate agreement

Because employment agreements are legally binding contracts governed by state laws, a CAA should work with an attorney with both employment and tax law expertise who is licensed in its state to draft the terms of the agreement.

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Another important responsibility of a board is setting the compensation it pays to the executive director. For nonprofit CAAs, all of which are tax-exempt organizations, the Internal Revenue Services (IRS) oversees compensation paid to executive directors and enforces rules to ensure that the compensation is not excessive. Public CAAs must comply with the local laws and local government policies that govern compensation paid to the department employees who manage the CSBG program and, under **Standard 7.6**, public CAA boards should have access to information about the CSBG program head's compensation pursuant to the local government procedures. For both nonprofit and public CAAs, funding source requirements may dictate how federal grants funds may be used for salaries including compliance with salary caps.

A. Understanding IRS Compensation Requirements

"The IRS rules impose taxes on transactions where an individual with substantial influence over an organization receives an excessive economic benefit from the organization."

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) requirements around executive director compensation are in place to prevent a tax-exempt organization, like a nonprofit CAA, from giving an executive director what may be viewed as excessive compensation. The IRS rules impose taxes on transactions where an individual with substantial influence over an organization receives an excessive economic benefit from the organization. All voting board members, and key officials such as the president, chief financial officer or fiscal director, chief operating officer, executive director or other persons with such responsibilities are considered to be individuals who exercise substantial influence over the organization under these IRS rules, which are referred to as "intermediate sanctions" or "excess benefit" rules.

The IRS rules require that compensation paid to officers and key executives of a tax-exempt organization be reasonable. If the compensation is not reasonable, the IRS will invoke "intermediate sanctions" requiring the individual who received excessive compensation to return the unreasonable portion to the organization and to pay a penalty tax to the IRS. In addition, board members who approved the compensation knowing that it was excessive may also owe penalty taxes. However, the tax law presumes that compensation is reasonable if:

- Before making its decision, the board obtained and relied on appropriate data regarding wage comparability in setting the compensation,
- The board approved the compensation in advance and those on the board who voted on the compensation were free of conflicts of interest related to the transaction, and

 The board adequately and timely documented the basis for its decision on the compensation package and decision process in writing at the time it makes its decision.

Once these factors are met, a presumption of reasonableness is established and the IRS has the burden to rebut it. Even if the process outlined above is not followed, the compensation will not automatically be considered unreasonable or an "excess benefit transaction," but the burden shifts to the organization to prove the reasonableness of it if the IRS challenges it.

The following are some tips for establishing the presumption that the executive director's compensation is reasonable:

Use a Board Committee

A committee of the board (such as the executive committee or the personnel committee) usually undertakes the responsibility to ensure that the proper compensation analysis is conducted, such as researching comparables, to show that salary ranges and compensations are reasonable.

Assure Board Independence

Any board members who have a conflict of interest with respect to the transaction should recuse themselves from discussions and voting on the matter.

Link Pay to Performance

Compensation levels and any bonuses should be linked to performance. Establishing compensation goes hand in hand with evaluating performance and setting goals. While cost-of-living increases and possible incentive compensation under a written plan are permissible, boards should avoid increasing compensation levels based on non-performance related factors such as seniority. CAPLAW recommends caution when considering awarding bonuses and incentive compensation because IRS rules that apply to written plans for such compensation are complex and many organizations have had costs associated with such compensation disallowed under federal grant rules for either not having a plan or failing to follow their plan.



Rely on Meaningful Comparables

The IRS expects to see that nonprofits use organizations for comparison that are similar to the organization relying on the comparables. To be considered comparable, an organization should conduct similar programs, be relatively equal in size, and have a similar workforce. Most likely a board committee will analyze all the data, note the differences and prepare a report for the full board explaining why those differences may or may not be relevant.

Document the Process

In setting the executive director's compensation, the board should rely on a clearly-defined deliberative process that is documented. The board must adequately document the basis for its determination concurrently with making that determination. For a decision by the board to be documented adequately, the minutes must note:

- The terms of the compensation arrangement that was approved and the date it was approved,
- The board members who were present during deliberations about the compensation arrangement that was approved and those who voted on it,
- The comparability data obtained and relied upon by the board and how the data was obtained, and
- Any actions taken regarding the compensation arrangement by anyone who is a member of the board but who had a conflict of interest as to the transaction.

For further information about the IRS excess benefit rule that applies to executive compensation, see <u>Section 30</u>. Taxes on <u>Excess Benefit Transactions</u> of the IRS's Exempt Organizations Tax Manual.

The board will also need to consider IRS rules that prohibit highly compensated employees from receiving more generous fringe benefits than other employees as well as those governing incentive compensation when deciding if the organization will be able to provide an executive director with certain fringe benefits such as a deferred compensation plan or bonus. The board (possibly through a committee, such as the executive, finance or personnel committee) should work with an attorney or accountant to ensure compliance with IRS rules governing these and other possible fringe benefits.

Lastly, the IRS requires tax-exempt organizations to report compensation of certain employees on its Form 900. Typically the CAA's finance director will work with the executive director, outside tax preparer (if applicable), and the board finance committee to ensure that applicable sections of the Form 990 are properly completed. Visit the IRS website for Charities and Non-Profits to view the current year's Form 990 and Instructions, which address reporting of compensation to key employees. In addition, IRS <u>Publication 4221-PC</u> titled *A Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public Charities* provides information about a tax-exempt organization's reporting requirements.

B. Recognizing Funding Source Compensation Requirements

When setting the executive director's compensation, the board should be aware of the requirements that apply to the federal funds that may be used to pay the compensation. Some of the more notable requirements include:

The applicable federal appropriations acts which often imposes salary caps for an applicable year. For example, in 2015 the Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act specified that no funds appropriated by the Department of Health and Human Services shall be used to pay the salary of an individual in excess of Executive Level II (in 2015, that level was \$183,300).8

The Uniform Guidance which generally requires that total compensation paid to individual employees must be reasonable for the services rendered and conforms to the established written policies of the organization. Compensation is deemed reasonable to the extent it is either consistent with pay for similar work in the entity's other activities or comparable to that paid for similar work in the labor market of the entity. Also, fringe benefits such as leave, retirement plans and incentive compensation are generally allowable under the Uniform Guidance as long as certain factors are in place. The board (or board committee) should work with an attorney or accountant to ensure compliance with the Uniform Guidance rules when setting the executive director's compensation.

CSBG Organizational Standards of which Standard 7.6 requires nonprofit CAA boards to review and approve the executive director's compensation within every calendar year and public CAA boards to have access to information about the department head's compensation pursuant to the local government procedures.

The Head Start Act and guidance which limits the compensation of Head Start staff whose salaries are paid principally with Head Start funds, i.e., paid at least 50% from Head Start funds. The Act precludes the use of any federal funds to pay any part of the compensation of a Head Start employee principally paid with Head Start funds if that employee's total compensation exceeds the rate payable for federal Executive Level II. Compensation includes "salaries, bonuses, periodic payments, severance pay, the value of any vacation time, the value of a compensatory or paid leave benefit not [explicitly] excluded, and the fair market value of any employee perquisite or benefit not [explicitly] excluded." Explicitly excluded is "any Head Start agency expenditure for a health, medical, life insurance, disability, retirement or any other employee welfare or pension benefit."11 Moreover, the Head Start Act requires grantees to ensure that compensation paid under the program is comparable to what those performing similar services in the same area are paid or does not exceed what the individual was being paid for performing the same services at his/her most recent prior place of employment.¹² For more information about Head Start wage requirements see the resources available on the Head Start website.

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SUPERVISION AND EVALUATION

Boards of nonprofit CAAs are tasked with the ongoing responsibility of supervising and evaluating the executive director. Even though public CAA boards may not have the authority to be directly involved with the supervision and evaluation of the executive director, the board should provide the local governing body with recommendations regarding the impact, or lack thereof, that the department head overseeing the CSBG program has had on the success of the program.

A. Setting Check-in Meetings with the Board Chair

"In a smoothly running organization, the executive director and the board chair are in regular communication..."

In a smoothly running organization, the executive director and the board chair are in regular communication and will often meet or schedule regular calls to discuss new or ongoing concerns. Meeting regularly establishes an opportunity for the board chair to let the executive director know what the executive director is doing well and provide appreciation for his or her daily efforts on behalf of the organization. At the same time, it is a way to spot problems between evaluations, before they become critical. Both parties will find check-ins most rewarding and helpful if comments and

questions are constructive and not defensive. The chair's feedback would be informed not only by his or her own perspective but also by the thoughts or issues raised by conversations with other board members.

B. Providing Assistance to the Executive Director

Being an executive director of any organization is a tremendously complex job with many pressures and expectations. If the executive director has been struggling with specific problems such as time management, lack of expertise, or feeling overwhelmed, the board should work with the executive director to help him/her obtain the needed assistance. For most boards, the board chair will be the one to discuss such issues with the executive director and then work with either the full board or a board committee to identify possible solutions such as training in specific subjects, finding an external mentor or considering executive coaching.

C. Signing the Executive Director's Timesheet

Federal grant rules do not require the executive director to have someone sign his or her time record. The Uniform Guidance no longer requires a specific type of documentation – such as a personnel activities report (PAR) – to track time spent on different funding sources. Rather, non-federal entities' records must meet standards that are intended to ensure that each funding source is only bearing the appropriate cost for an employee's compensation. However, a CAA may choose

to continue using PARs which appear to be an acceptable way to meet the standards set forth in the Uniform Guidance. 13

Under the prior federal cost principles (i.e., OMB Circular A-122 for nonprofits and A-87 for state, local and tribal governments), either the employee or a supervisor with firsthand knowledge of how the employee spent his or her time would sign the employee's PAR to verify that it is an accurate reflection of that employee's time. Generally, in most CAAs, the executive director will be involved in multiple activities associated with a variety of funding sources and there will be no other employee or board member that will have first-hand knowledge of how he or she spends his or her time on a daily basis. Thus, if a CAA continues to use PARs, the executive director will be in the best position to sign his or her PAR and verify that it accurately reflects the way he or she spent time furthering the purposes of different federal grants.

Additionally, a board ensures that an executive director is spending his or her time furthering the purposes of federal grants in a number of ways including requesting organizational reports from the executive director at board meetings, asking the executive director about goals and programs and delving more deeply into how an executive director spends his or time if tasks are not being accomplished or completed. The board of directors may analyze an executive director's time further when the board conducts an annual review of the executive director's performance.

D. Reviewing the Executive Director

The executive director is central to the success (or failure) of an organization. One of the board's most critical roles is to perform an annual, written evaluation of the executive director. This evaluation will document both achievements and shortcomings so that the executive director's performance can be improved to benefit the entire organization as well as his/her own personal growth. Standard 7.4 of the CSBG Organizational Standards recommends for nonprofit CAAs that the board conduct a performance appraisal of the executive director within each calendar year and for public CAAs that the department follows local government procedures for performance appraisals of the department head.

The evaluation of the executive director actually begins when the board and the executive director agree upon goals and objectives for the coming year. Tying these goals to the strategic plan of the organization is a good way to structure a meaningful performance review for the executive director.



The evaluation process often helps align and clarify goals and expectations of the executive director and provides firm support for executive compensation decisions.

Below are some general guidelines for evaluating the executive director; however, it is important to note that the size and complexity of the board and the organization will dictate what procedures and tools are appropriate for the evaluation:

Start with a board committee

The committee could be either a subgroup of the executive, governance or compensation committee (if applicable) or perhaps an ad hoc committee that will handle the logistics, research and written documentation.

Decide on an evaluation tool and the criteria for the review

Many types of evaluation tools are available which range from a checklist of skills and abilities that enable others to "rate" the executive director to more openended tools that allow for individual comments. The executive director should also complete a self-assessment of achievements and address areas of concern. After the tool is selected, the executive director and the committee should meet to review the process and the tool.

Gather input from a variety of sources

Include board and staff members, and key partners of the CAA (consider clients, volunteers, donors, community members, etc.) as part of the evaluation. Obtaining input from non-board members may be difficult without anonymity so a board may consider using online surveys that protect confidentiality.

Set up a face-to-face evaluation meeting

When all of the data and comments have been collected and discussed by the evaluation committee, it may be best for either the board chair, or the chair and one other committee member, to meet with the executive director to discuss both the board's evaluation and the executive director's self-assessment. Such a meeting would typically cover the executive director's achievements, the areas where he/ she might need improvement, and the planned goals for the executive director to focus on in the coming year. It is also a good opportunity to discuss professional development goals for the executive director. If compensation is discussed, the committee should keep a record of that discussion.

Create a written review and summary

Documentation is important because it serves as point of reference for the board and executive director with respect to those areas where the executive director has been successful as well as those where he/she can improve performance. Moreover, if done properly, documentation serves to protect the organization from future employment liability claims.

VIII. CONCLUSION

The board and executive director relationship will always be a "work-in-progress" that is constantly evolving in hopefully healthy and sustainable ways. While this Guide addresses points about board and executive director relationships that are unique to CAAs, many applicable resources exists to help boards and executive directors nurture and grow their working relationships. A few other websites and resources that CAA boards and executive directors may find particularly helpful include:

- <u>BoardSource</u>
- <u>Bridgespan</u>
- The Invisible Yellow Line: Clarifying Nonprofit Board and Staff Roles by Jean Block

As always, we encourage CAA boards and executive directors to continue contacting CAPLAW and the national Community Action Partnership with governance questions and concerns. Both organizations serve as national training and technical service providers for CAAs with the goal of helping CAAs maintain compliance and develop in innovative and financially viable ways.

ENDNOTES

- ¹45 C.F.R. § 75.327(c).
- ² 45 C.F.R. § 75.327(c); 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c).
- ³ 45 C.F.R. § 75.501; 2 C.F.R. § 200.501.
- ⁴ <u>45 C.F.R. § 75.431(i)</u>; <u>2 C.F.R. § 200.431(i)</u>.
- ⁵ South Central Florida Health Systems Council, Inc., DAB No. 488 (1983); see also Alcoholism Center for Women, DAB No. 222 (1981) and Health Systems Agency of Western New York, DAB No. 221 (1981).
- ⁶ Alcoholism Center for Women, DAB No. 222 (1981); South Central Florida Health Systems Council, Inc., DAB No. 488 (1983).
- ⁷ Alcoholism Center for Women, DAB No. 222; South Central Florida Health Systems Council, DAB No. 488.
- ⁸ Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act 2015, 113 P.L. 235; 113 H.R. 83, Division G, Title II, Sec. 203.
- ⁹ 45 C.F.R. § 75.430(b); 2 C.F.R. § 200.430(b).
- ¹⁰ 45 C.F.R. § 75.431; 2 C.F.R. § 200.431.
- ¹¹ 42 U.S.C. § 9848 (b); <u>ACF-PI-HS-06-01 Office of Head Start Policy clarifications on Hiring of key staff and Board approval of refunding proposals and Quality Improvement Plans (QIPS).</u>
- ¹² 42 U.S.C. § 9848(a).
- ¹³ 45 C.F.R. § 75.430 (i); 2 C.F.R. § 200.430(i).

CSNT Head Start Director's Report PY05/FY24

July Report/June Data

How Are We Doing?



HEAD START Attendance - June 2024

- √ 469 Actual Enrollment (Under/Over +4 Student(s)) Funded 465
- ✓ 0% Disability Students 10% Target
- √ 0% Average Daily Attendance



HEAD START NFS/Indirect Costs/Admin Expenses Rate

- √ \$908,233 NFS Collected \$1,133,347 NFS Needed
- √ \$165,268 Indirect Costs Collected
- √ 10% Admin Expense Rate



HEAD START CACFP Meals/Reimbursements

- √ \$0 Reimbursed This Month \$67,781 Reimbursed This Year
- ✓ 0 days of Service 0 Meals Served

Listen with Curosity Speak with Honesty Act with Integrity



HEAD START Quality Assurance

- √ 0 Files Reviewed/0 Classrooms Observed/0 Route
 Observed
- ✓ 0 Incomes Verified/0 Interviews/25 Community Contacts
- ✓ <u>Self-Assessment</u> 4 Findings/4 Corrections/0 Remaining
- ✓ <u>Annual Detailed Monitoring</u> 7 Findings/7 Corrections/0 Remaining

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Preparing for New School Year Preparing for New Five Year Grant Project Period Grant Application

CSNT Early Head Start Director's Report PY05/FY24

July Report/June Data

How Are We Doing?



EARLY HEAD START Attendance - July 2024

- √ 16 Actual Enrollment (Under/Over 0 Student(s)) Funded 16
- √ 0% Disability Students 10% Target
- √ 0% Average Daily Attendance (HS Summer Break)



EARLY HEAD START NFS/Indirect Costs/Admin Expenses Rate

- √ \$13,166 NFS Collected \$67,318 NFS Needed
- √ \$8,731 Indirect Costs Collected
- √ 6% Admin Expense Rate



HEAD START CACFP Meals/Reimbursements

- √ \$262 Reimbursed This Month \$10,562 Reimbursed This Year
- √ 16 days of Service 95 Meals Served

Listen with Curosity Speak with Honesty Act with Integrity



HEAD START Quality Assurance

- √ 9 Files Reviewed/10 Classrooms Observed.
- ✓ 0 Incomes Verified/1 Interviews/5 Community Contacts
- ✓ <u>Self-Assessment</u> 4 Findings/4 Corrections/0 Remaining
- Annual Detailed Monitoring 7 Findings/7 Corrections/0 Remaining

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Preparing for Summer Break - Preparing for New School Year Submitting New Five Year Grant Project Period Grant Application

A. PROGRAM INFORMATION

GENERAL INFORMATION

Grant Number	06CH011282
Program Number	000
Program Type	Head Start
Program Name	Community Services Of Northeast Texas, Inc.
Program Address	124 N Main St
Program City, State, Zip Code (5+4)	Linden, TX, 75563-5210
Program Phone Number	(903) 756 5596 - 211
Head Start or Early Head Start Director Name	Ms. Bernadette Harris
Head Start or Early Head Start Director Email	berny.harris@csntexas.org
Agency Email	berny.harris@csntexas.org
Agency Web Site Address	http://www.csntexas.org
Name and Title of Approving Official	Ms. Cecelia Huff, Governing Board Chair
Unique Entity Identifier (UEI)	EU1MB7HLJJT6
Agency Type	Community Action Agency (CAA)
Agency Description	Grantee that directly operates program(s) and has no delegates

FUNDED ENROLLMENT

Funded enrollment by funding source

		# of children
A.1	Funded Enrollment:	465
	A. Head Start/Early Head Start Funded Enrollment, as identified on the NOA that captures the greatest part of the program year	465
	b. Funded Enrollment from non-federal sources, i.e., state, local, private	0

Funded enrollment by program option

	# of slots
A.2 Center-based option	
 a. Number of slots equal to or greater than 1,020 annual hours for Head Start preschool children or 1,380 annual hours for Early Head Start infants and toddlers 	465
1. Of these, the number that are available for the full-working-day	0
2. Of these, the number that are available for the full-calendar-year	0
Of these, the number that are available for the full-working-day and full- calendar-year	0
b. Number of slots with fewer than 1,020 annual hours for Head Start preschool children or 1,380 annual hours for Early Head Start infants and toddlers	0
1. Of these, the number that are available for 3.5 hours per day for 128 days	0
2. Of these, the number that are available for a full working day	0
A.3 Home-based option	0
A.4 Family child care option	0
A.5 Locally designed option	0

Funded slots at child care partner

	# of slots
A.7 Total number of slots in the center-based or locally designed option	465
a. Of these, the total number of slots at a child care partner	0
A.8 Total funded enrollment at child care partners (includes center-based, locally designed, and family child care program options)	0

CLASSES IN CENTER-BASED

	# of classes
A.9 Total number of center-based classes operated	26
a. Of these, the number of double session classes	0

CUMULATIVE ENROLLMENT

Children by age

	# of children
A.10 Children by age:	
a. Under 1 year	0
b. 1 year old	0
c. 2 years old	6
d. 3 years old	263
e. 4 years old	260
f. 5 years and older	0
g. Total cumulative enrollment of children	529

Total cumulative enrollment

	# of children
A.12 Total cumulative enrollment	529

Primary type of documentation used for determining eligibility

	# of children
A.13 Report each enrollee only once by primary type of eligibility:	
a. Income at or below 100% of federal poverty line	245
b. Public assistance*	161
TANF documentation	3
2. SSI documentation	22
3. SNAP documentation	135
c. Foster care	16
d. Homeless	29
e. Eligibility based on other type of need, but not counted in A.13.a through d	46

	# of children
f. Incomes between 100% and 130% of the federal poverty line, but not counted in A.13.a through e	32

A.14 If the program serves enrollees under A.13.f, specify how the program has demonstrated that all children in their area that would be eligible under A.13.a to A.13.d are being served.

All income eligible children were selected first prior to selecting 101-130% above guidelines

Prior enrollment

	# of children
A.15 Enrolled in Head Start or Early Head Start for:	
a. The second year	146
b. Three or more years	9

Transition and turnover

	# of children
A.16 Total number of preschool children who left the program any time after classes or home visits began and did not re-enroll	81
 a. Of the preschool children who left the program during the program year, the number of preschool children who were enrolled less than 45 days 	17

	# of preschool children
A.17 Of the number of preschool children enrolled in Head Start at the end of the current enrollment year, the number projected to be entering kindergarten in the following school year	225

Attendance

	# of children
A.22 The total number of children cumulatively enrolled in the center-based or family child care program option	529
a. Of these children, the number of children that were chronically absent	279
 Of the children chronically absent, the number that stayed enrolled until the end of enrollment 	198

A.23 Comments on children that were chronically absent:
Cold symptoms, strep throat, and viruses

Child care subsidy

	# of children	
A.24 The number of enrolled children for whom the program and/or its partners received a child care subsidy during the program year	0)

Ethnicity and race

# of children		
(1)	(2)	
Hispanic or	Non-Hispanic or	
Latino origin	Non-Latino origin	

A.25 Race and ethnici	ty		
a. American India	an or Alaska Native	0	2
b. Asian		0	2
c. Black or Africa	ın American	6	271
d. Native Hawaiia	an or other Pacific Islander	0	0
e. White		23	144
f. Bi-racial/Multi-r	racial	6	41
g. Other		33	1
Explain:	Hispanic/Muslim		

	# of children / pregnant women
h. Unspecified ethnicity or race	0

Primary language of family at home

	# of children
A.26 Primary language of family at home:	
a. English	500
 Of these, the number of children acquiring/learning another language in addition to English 	14
b. Spanish	29
 c. Native Central American, South American & Mexican Languages (e.g., Mixteco, Quichean.) 	0
d. Caribbean Languages (e.g., Haitian-Creole, Patois)	0
e. Middle Eastern & South Asian Languages (e.g., Arabic, Hebrew, Hindi, Urdu, Bengali)	0
f. East Asian Languages (e.g., Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog)	0
g. Native North American/Alaska Native Languages	0
h. Pacific Island Languages (e.g., Palauan, Fijian)	0
i. European & Slavic Languages (e.g., German, French, Italian, Croatian, Yiddish, Portuguese, Russian)	0
j. African Languages (e.g., Swahili, Wolof)	0
k. American Sign Language	0
I. Other (e.g., American Sign Language)	0
 m. Unspecified (language is not known or parents declined identifying the home language) 	0

Dual language learners

	# of children
A.27 Total number of Dual Language Learners	43

Transportation

	# of children	
A.28 Number of children for whom transportation is provided to and from classes	•	150

RECORD KEEPING

Management Information Systems

A.29 List the management information system(s) your program uses to support tracking, maintaining, and using data on enrollees, program services, families, and program staff.

Name/title

ChildPlus

B. PROGRAM STAFF & QUALIFICATIONS

TOTAL STAFF

Staff by type

	(1) # of Head Start or Early Head Start staff	(2) # of contracted staff
B.1 Total number of staff members, regardless of the funding source for their salary or number of hours worked	89	20
a. Of these, the number who are current or former Head Start or Early Head Start parents	42	3

TOTAL VOLUNTEERS

Volunteers by type

	# of volunteers
B.2 Number of persons providing any volunteer services to the program during the program year	425
 a. Of these, the number who are current or former Head Start or Early Head Start parents 	378

EDUCATION AND CHILD DEVELOPMENT STAFF

Preschool classroom and assistant teachers (HS and Migrant programs)

	(1) # of classroom teachers	(2) # of assistant teachers
B.3 Total number of preschool education and child development staff by position	26	26

	(1) # of classroom teachers	(2) # of assistant teachers
Of the number of preschool education and child development staff by position, the number with the following:		
a. An advanced degree in:		
Early childhood education Any field and coursework equivalent to a major relating to early childhood education, with experience teaching preschool-age children	2	0

	(1) # of classroom teachers	(2) # of assistant teachers
Of the number of preschool education and child development staff by position, the number with the following:		
b. A baccalaureate degree in one of the following:		
Early childhood education Any field and coursework equivalent to a major relating to early childhood education with experience teaching preschool-age children or Any field and is part of the Teach for America program and passed a rigorous early childhood content exam	24	1

	(1) # of classroom teachers	(2) # of assistant teachers
Of the number of preschool education and child development staff by position, the number with the following:		
c. An associate degree in:		
Early childhood education A field related to early childhood education and coursework equivalent to a major relating to early childhood education with experience teaching preschool-age children	0	2

	(1) # of classroom teachers	(2) # of assistant teachers
Of the number of preschool education and child development staff by position, the number with the following:		
 d. A Child Development Associate (CDA) credential or state-awarded certification, credential, or licensure that meets or exceeds CDA requirements 	0	19
Of these, a CDA credential or state-awarded certification, credential, or licensure that meets or exceeds CDA requirements and that is appropriate to the option in which they are working	0	19

	(1) # of classroom teachers	(2) # of assistant teachers
Of the number of preschool education and child development staff by position, the number with the following:		
e. None of the qualifications listed in B.3.a through B.3.d	0	4

Preschool classroom teachers program enrollment

	# of classroom teachers
B.4 Total number of preschool classroom teachers that do not meet qualifications listed in B.3.a or B.3.b	0
a. Of these preschool classroom teachers, the number enrolled in a degree program that would meet the qualifications described in B.3.a or B.3.b	0

Preschool classroom assistant teachers program enrollment

	# of assistant teachers
B.5 Total number of preschool assistant teachers that do not have any qualifications listed in B.3.a through B.3.d	4
 a. Of these preschool assistant teachers, the number enrolled in a degree, certification, credential, or licensure program that would meet one of the qualifications listed in B.3.a through B.3.d. 	4

Home visitors and family child care provider staff qualifications

	# of home visitors
B.8 Total number of home visitors	0
 a. Of these, the number of home visitors that have a home-based CDA credential or comparable credential, or equivalent coursework as part of an associate's, baccalaureate, or advanced degree 	0
Of these, the number of home visitors that hold a baccalaureate or advanced degree	0
 b. Of these, the number of home visitors that do not meet one of the qualifications described in B.8.a. 	0
 Of the home visitors in B.8.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in B.8.a. 	0

	# of family child care providers
B.9 Total number of family child care providers	0
 a. Of these, the number of family child care providers that have a Family Child Care CDA credential or state equivalent, or an associate, baccalaureate, or advanced degree in child development or early childhood education 	0
 Of these, the number of family child care providers that hold a baccalaureate or advanced degree in child development or early childhood education 	0
 b. Of these, the number of family child care providers that do not meet one of the qualifications described in B.9.a. 	0
 Of the family child care providers in B.9.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in B.9.a. 	0

	# of child development specialists
B.10 Total number of child development specialists that support family child care providers	0
 a. Of these, the number of child development specialists that have a baccalaureate degree in child development, early childhood education, or a related field 	0
 b. Of these, the number of child development specialists that do not meet one of the qualifications described in B.10.a. 	0
 Of the child development specialists in B.10.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in B.10.a. 	0

Ethnicity and race

	# of non-supervis	# of non-supervisory education and child development staff	
	(1) Hispanic or Latino origin	(2) Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino origin	
B.13 Race and Ethnicity			
a. American Indian or Alaska Native	0	1	
b. Asian	0	0	
c. Black or African American	0	26	
d. Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander	0	0	
e. White	4	20	
f. Biracial/Multi-racial	0	0	
g. Other	1	0	

Explain:	Hispanic and does not want to be classified as	white.
		# of non-supervisory education and child development staff
h. Unspecified eth	nnicity or race	0

Language

	# of non- supervisory education and child development staff
B.14 The number who are proficient in a language(s) other than English.	3
a. Of these, the number who are proficient in more than one language other than English	0

B.15 Language groups in which staff are proficient:	# of non- supervisory education and child development staff
a. Spanish	3
b. Native Central American, South American, and Mexican Languages (e.g., Mixteco, Quichean.)	0
c. Caribbean Languages (e.g., Haitian-Creole, Patois)	0
d. Middle Eastern and South Asian Languages (e.g., Arabic, Hebrew, Hindi, Urdu, Bengali)	0
e. East Asian Languages (e.g., Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog)	0
f. Native North American/Alaska Native Languages	0
g. Pacific Island Languages (e.g., Palauan, Fijian)	0
h. European and Slavic Languages (e.g., German, French, Italian, Croatian, Yiddish, Portuguese, Russian)	0
i. African Languages (e.g., Swahili, Wolof)	0
j. American Sign Language	0
k. Other	0
I. Unspecified (language is not known or staff declined identifying the language)	0

STAFF TURNOVER

All staff turnover

	(1) # of Head Start or Early Head Start staff	(2) # of contracted staff
B.16 Total number of staff who left during the program year (including turnover that occurred while the program was not in session, e.g., summer months)	11	6
a. Of these, the number who were replaced	3	6

Education and child development staff turnover

	# of staff
B.17 The number of classroom teachers, preschool assistant teachers, family child care providers, and home visitors who left during the program year (including turnover that occurred while classes and home visits were not in session, e.g., during summer months)	11
a. Of these, the number who were replaced	8
b. Of these, the number who left while classes and home visits were in session	0
c. Of these, the number that were classroom teachers who left the program	2

		# of staff
B.18 Of the number of earthe following pri	ducation and child development staff that left, the number that left mary reason:	
a. Higher compens	ation	1
1. Of these, the	number that moved to state pre-k or other early childhood program	0
b. Retirement or re	location	5
c. Involuntary sepa	ration	4
d. Other (e.g., char	nge in job field, reason not provided)	1
1. Specify:	Changed job field	
B.19 Number of vacancion months or longer	es during the program year that remained unfilled for a period of 3	1

C. CHILD AND HEALTH SERVICES

HEALTH SERVICES

Health insurance - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.1 Number of all children with health insurance	501	496
a. Of these, the number enrolled in Medicaid and/or CHIP	449	443
 b. Of these, the number enrolled in state-only funded insurance (e.g., medically indigent insurance), private insurance, or other health insurance 	52	53
C.2 Number of children with no health insurance	28	33

Accessible health care - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.5 Number of children with an ongoing source of continuous, accessible health care provided by a health care professional that maintains the child's ongoing health record and is not primarily a source of emergency or urgent care	505	506
 a. Of these, the number of children that have accessible health care through a federally qualified Health Center, Indian Health Service, Tribal and/or Urban Indian Health Program facility 	0	0

Medical services - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.7 Number of children who are up-to-date on a schedule of age- appropriate preventive and primary health care, according to the relevant state's EPSDT schedule for well child care	29	442

	# of children	
C.8. Number of children diagnosed with any chronic condition by a health care professional, regardless of when the condition was first diagnosed	;	36
 a. Of these, the number who received medical treatment for their diagnosed chronic health condition 	;	36

 Specify the primary reason that children with any chronic condition diagnosed by a health care professional did not receive medical treatment: 	# of children
No medical treatment needed	0
2. No health insurance	0
3. Parents did not keep/make appointment	0
4. Children left the program before their appointment date	0
5. Appointment is scheduled for future date	0
6. Other	0

C.9 Number of children diagnosed by a health care professional with the following chronic condition, regardless of when the condition was first diagnosed:	# of children
a. Autism spectrum disorder (ASD)	2
b. Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD)	1
c. Asthma	5
d. Seizures	2
e. Life-threatening allergies (e.g., food allergies, bee stings, and medication allergies that may result in systemic anaphylaxis)	0
f. Hearing Problems	1
g. Vision Problems	26
h. Blood lead level test with elevated lead levels >5 g/dL	0
i. Diabetes	0

Body Mass Index (BMI) – children (HS and Migrant programs)

	# of children at enrollment
C.10 Number of children who are in the following weight categories according to the 2000 CDC BMI-for-age growth charts	
a. Underweight (BMI less than 5th percentile for child's age and sex)	28
b. Healthy weight (at or above 5th percentile and below 85th percentile for child's age and sex)	317
c. Overweight (BMI at or above 85th percentile and below 95th percentile for child's age and sex)	71
d. Obese (BMI at or above 95th percentile for child's age and sex)	97

Immunization services - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.11 Number of children who have been determined by a health care professional to be up-to-date on all immunizations appropriate for their age	489	491
C.12 Number of children who have been determined by a health care professional to have received all immunizations possible at this time but who have not received all immunizations appropriate for their age	10	9
C.13 Number of children who meet their state's guidelines for an exemption from immunizations	19	19

ORAL HEALTH

Accessible dental care - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.18 Number of children with continuous, accessible oral care provided by an oral health care professional which includes access to oral health preventive care and oral treatment	488	493

	# of children
C.19 Number of children who received oral health preventive care during the program year	400
C.20 Number of all children who have completed a professional oral examination during the program year	400
 a. Of these, the number of children diagnosed as needing oral treatment during the program year 	12
 Of these, the number of children who received oral treatment during the program year 	9
 Specify the primary reason that children who needed dental treatment did not receive it: 	# of children
Health insurance doesn't cover oral treatment	0
2. No oral care available in local area	0
Medicaid not accepted by dentist	0
4. Dentists in the area do not treat 3- to 5-year-old children	0
5. Dentists in the area do not treat children below age 3	0
6. Parents did not keep/make appointment	0
7. Children left the program before their appointment date	1
8. Appointment is scheduled for future date	2
9. No transportation	0
10. Other	0

Mental health consultation

	# of staff
C.21 Total number of classroom teachers, home visitors, and family child care providers	26
 a. Indicate the number of classroom teachers, home visitors, and family child care providers who received assistance from a mental health consultant through observation and consultation 	0

DISABILITIES SERVICES

IDEA eligibility determination

	# of children
C.22 The total number of children referred for an evaluation to determine eligibility under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) during the program year	38
a. Of these, the number who received an evaluation to determine IDEA eligibility	36
 Of the children that received an evaluation, the number that were diagnosed with a disability under IDEA 	34
Of the children that received an evaluation, the number that were not diagnosed with a disability under IDEA	2
 Of these children, the number for which the program is still providing or facilitating individualized services and supports such as an individual learning plan or supports described under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. 	0
b. Of these, the number who did not receive an evaluation to determine IDEA eligibility	2

	# of children
C.23 Specify the primary reason that children referred for an evaluation to determine IDEA eligibility did not receive it:	
a. The responsible agency assigned child to Response to Intervention (RTI)	0
b. Parent(s) refused evaluation	0
c. Evaluation is pending and not yet completed by responsible agency	1
d. Other	1

1. Specify:	Child Moved.	
Opcony .	Orma morea.	

Preschool disabilities services (HS and Migrant programs)

	# of children
C.24 Number of children enrolled in the program who had an Individualized Education Program (IEP), at any time during the program year, indicating they were determined eligible by the LEA to receive special education and related services under the IDEA	48
 a. Of these, the number who were determined eligible to receive special education and related services: 	# of children
Prior to this program year	17
2. During this program year	31
b. Of these, the number who have not received special education and related services	0

Preschool primary disabilities (HS and Migrant programs)

	(1) # of children determined to have this disability	(2) # of children receiving special services
C.26 Diagnosed primary disability:		
 a. Health impairment (i.e., meeting IDEA definition of "other health impairment") 	1	1
b. Emotional disturbance	0	0
c. Speech or language impairments	36	36
d. Intellectual disabilities	2	2
e. Hearing impairment, including deafness	0	0
f. Orthopedic impairment	0	0
g. Visual impairment, including blindness	0	0
h. Specific learning disability	1	1
i. Autism	4	4
j. Traumatic brain injury	0	0
k. Non-categorical/developmental delay	2	2
I. Multiple disabilities (excluding deaf-blind)	2	2
m. Deaf-blind	0	0

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT TOOLS/APPROACHES

Screening

	# of children
C.27 Number of all newly enrolled children since last year's PIR was reported	382
C.28 Number of all newly enrolled children who completed required screenings within 45 days for developmental, sensory, and behavioral concerns since last year's PIR was reported	284
a. Of these, the number identified as needing follow-up assessment or formal evaluation to determine if the child has a disability	22

C.29 The instrument(s) used by the program for developmental screening
Name/title
Dial (all editions)
ASQ (all editions)

Assessment

C.30 Approach or tool(s) used by the program to support ongoing child assessment

Name/title

CIRCLE Assessment CLiEngage

Curriculum

C.31 Curriculum used by the program:	
a. For center-based services	
Name/title	
Frog Street Pre-K	
Frog Street Threes	
e. For building on the parents' knowledge and skill (i.e., parenting curriculum)	
Name/title	
Ready Rosie	

Classroom and home visit observation tools

C.32 Does the program routinely use classroom or home visit observation tools to assess quality?	Yes (Y) / No (N) Yes
C.33 If yes, classroom and home visit observation tool(s) used by the program:	
a. Center-based settings	
Name/title	
Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS: Infant, Toddler, or Pre-K)	

FAMILY AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Number of families

	# of families at enrollment
C.34 Total number of families:	498
a. Of these, the number of two-parent families	162
b. Of these, the number of single-parent families	336
C.35 Of the total number of families, the number in which the parent/guardian figures are best described as:	
a. Parent(s) (e.g., biological, adoptive, stepparents)	464
 Of these, the number of families with a mother only (biological, adoptive, stepmother) 	315
Of these, the number of families with a father only (biological, adoptive, stepfather)	19
b. Grandparents	22
c. Relative(s) other than grandparents	3
d. Foster parent(s) not including relatives	7
e. Other	2

Parent/guardian education

	# of families at enrollment
C.36 Of the total number of families, the highest level of education obtained by the child's parent(s) / guardian(s):	
a. An advanced degree or baccalaureate degree	93
b. An associate degree, vocational school, or some college	52
c. A high school graduate or GED	285
d. Less than high school graduate	68

Employment, Job Training, and School

	# of families at enrollment
C.37 Total number of families in which:	
a. At least one parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment	343
 Of these families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian is employed 	340
 Of these families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian is in job training (e.g., job training program, professional certificate, apprenticeship, or occupational license) 	71
Of these families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian is in school (e.g., GED, associate degree, baccalaureate, or advanced degree)	71
 b. Neither/No parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment (e.g., unemployed, retired, or disabled) 	155

	# of families at end of enrollment
C.38 Total number of families in which:	
 a. At least one parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at end of enrollment 	357
 Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.a (as having been employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment) 	341
Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.b (as having not been employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment)	16
 b. Neither/No parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at end of enrollment (e.g., unemployed, retired, or disabled) 	141
1. Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.a	2
2. Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.b	139

	# of families at enrollment
C.39 Total number of families in which:	
a. At least one parent/guardian is a member of the United States military on active duty	5
b. At least one parent/guardian is a veteran of the United States military	11

Federal or other assistance

	# of families at enrollment	# of families at end of enrollment
C.40 Total number of families receiving any cash benefits or other services under the Federal Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) Program	5	6
C.41 Total number of families receiving Supplemental Security Income (SSI)	37	39
C.42 Total number of families receiving services under the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)	130	114
C.43 Total number of families receiving benefits under the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), formerly referred to as Food Stamps	233	233

Family services

	# of families
C.44 The number of families that received the following program service to promote family outcomes:	
 a. Emergency/crisis intervention (e.g., meeting immediate needs for food, clothing, or shelter) 	7
b. Housing assistance (e.g., subsidies, utilities, repairs)	7
c. Asset building services (e.g., financial education, debt counseling)	138
d. Mental health services	17
e. Substance misuse prevention	1
f. Substance misuse treatment	4
g. English as a Second Language (ESL) training	24
h. Assistance in enrolling into an education or job training program	72
i. Research-based parenting curriculum	376
 j. Involvement in discussing their child's screening and assessment results and their child's progress 	466
k. Supporting transitions between programs (i.e., EHS to HS, HS to kindergarten)	461
I. Education on preventive medical and oral health	466
m. Education on health and developmental consequences of tobacco product use	223
n. Education on nutrition	480
o. Education on postpartum care (e.g., breastfeeding support)	4
p. Education on relationship/marriage	9
q. Assistance to families of incarcerated individuals	3
C.45 Of these, the number of families who were counted in at least one of the services listed above	488

Father engagement

	# of father/ father figures
C.46 Number of fathers/father figures who were engaged in the following activities during this program year:	
a. Family assessment	211
b. Family goal setting	211
c. Involvement in child's Head Start child development experiences (e.g., home visits, parent-teacher conferences, etc.)	255
d. Head Start program governance, such as participation in the Policy Council or policy committees	18

	# of father/ father figures
e. Parenting education workshops	52

Homelessness services

	# of families	
C.47 Total number of families experiencing homelessness that were served during the enrollment year		34
	# of children	
	# Of Children	
C.48 Total number of children experiencing homelessness that were served during the enrollment year		34
	# of families	
C.49 Total number of families experiencing homelessness that acquired housing during the enrollment year		3

Foster care and child welfare

	# of children
C.50 Total number of enrolled children who were in foster care at any point during the program year	23
C.51 Total number of enrolled children who were referred to Head Start/Early Head Start services by a child welfare agency	5

D. GRANT LEVEL QUESTIONS

INTENSIVE COACHING

	# of education and child development staff
D.1 The number of education and child development staff (i.e., teachers, preschool assistant teachers, home visitors, family child care providers) that received intensive coaching	22

	# of coaches
D.2 The number of individuals that provided intensive coaching, whether by staff, consultants, or through partnership	2

MANAGEMENT STAFF SALARIES

	(3) Number of Management Staff in this Position
D.3 Management staff:	
a. Executive Director	1
b. Head Start and/or Early Head Start Director	1
c. Education Manager/Coordinator	3
d. Health Services Manager/Coordinator	1
e. Family & Community Partnerships Manager/Coordinator	2
f. Disability Services Manager/Coordinator	1
g. Fiscal Officer	1

FAMILY SERVICES STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

	# of family services staff
D.5 Total number of family services staff:	16
 a. Of these, the number that have a credential, certification, associate, baccalaureate, or advanced degree in social work, human services, family services, counseling, or a related field 	15
b. Of these, the number that do not meet one of the qualifications described in D.5.a	1
 Of the family services staff in D.5.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in D.5.a. 	1
2. Of the family services staff in D.5.b, the number hired before November 7, 2016	0

FORMAL AGREEMENTS FOR COLLABORATION

	# of partners or agencies
D.6 Total number of child care partners in which a formal agreement was in effect	0
D.7 Total number of LEAs in the service area	23
 a. Of these, the total number of LEAs in which a formal agreement was in effect to coordinate services for children with disabilities 	8
 b. Of these, the total number of LEAs in which a formal agreement was in effect to coordinate transition services 	8
D.8 Total number of Part C agencies in the service area	5
 a. Of these, the total number of Part C agencies in which a formal agreement was in effect to coordinate services for children with disabilities 	5

REPORTING INFORMATION

PIR Report Status	Completed With Corrections
Confirmation Number	24060560862
Last Update Date	06/05/2024

A. PROGRAM INFORMATION

GENERAL INFORMATION

Grant Number	06CH011282
Program Number	200
Program Type	Early Head Start
Program Name	Community Services Of Northeast Texas, Inc.
Program Address	124 N Main St
Program City, State, Zip Code (5+4)	Linden, TX, 75563-5210
Program Phone Number	(903) 756 5596 - 211
Head Start or Early Head Start Director Name	Ms. Bernadette Harris
Head Start or Early Head Start Director Email	berny.harris@csntexas.org
Agency Email	berny.harris@csntexas.org
Agency Web Site Address	http://www.csntexas.org
Name and Title of Approving Official	Ms. Cecelia Huff, Governing Board Chair
Unique Entity Identifier (UEI)	EU1MB7HLJJT6
Agency Type	Community Action Agency (CAA)
Agency Description	Grantee that directly operates program(s) and has no delegates

FUNDED ENROLLMENT

Funded enrollment by funding source

	# of children / pregnant women
A.1 Funded Enrollment:	16
a. Head Start/Early Head Start Funded Enrollment, as identified on the NOA that captures the greatest part of the program year	16
b. Funded Enrollment from non-federal sources, i.e., state, local, private	0
 c. Funded Enrollment from the MIECHV Grant Program using the Early Head Start home visiting model 	0

Funded enrollment by program option

	# of slots
A.2 Center-based option	
 a. Number of slots equal to or greater than 1,020 annual hours for Head Start preschool children or 1,380 annual hours for Early Head Start infants and toddlers 	16
1. Of these, the number that are available for the full-working-day	0
2. Of these, the number that are available for the full-calendar-year	0
Of these, the number that are available for the full-working-day and full- calendar-year	0
 b. Number of slots with fewer than 1,020 annual hours for Head Start preschool children or 1,380 annual hours for Early Head Start infants and toddlers 	0
1. Of these, the number that are available for 3.5 hours per day for 128 days	0
2. Of these, the number that are available for a full working day	0
A.3 Home-based option	0
A.4 Family child care option	0
A.5 Locally designed option	0

	# of pregnant women slots
A.6 Pregnant women slots	0

Funded slots at child care partner

	# of slots
A.7 Total number of slots in the center-based or locally designed option	16
a. Of these, the total number of slots at a child care partner	0
A.8 Total funded enrollment at child care partners (includes center-based, locally designed, and family child care program options)	0

CLASSES IN CENTER-BASED

	# of classes
A.9 Total number of center-based classes operated	2
a. Of these, the number of double session classes	0

CUMULATIVE ENROLLMENT

Children by age

	# of children
A.10 Children by age:	
a. Under 1 year	1
b. 1 year old	10
c. 2 years old	8
d. 3 years old	0
g. Total cumulative enrollment of children	19

Pregnant women (EHS programs)

	# of pregnant women
A.11 Cumulative enrollment of pregnant women	0

Total cumulative enrollment

	# of children / pregnant women
A.12 Total cumulative enrollment	19

Primary type of documentation used for determining eligibility

	# of children / pregnant women
A.13 Report each enrollee only once by primary type of eligibility:	
a. Income at or below 100% of federal poverty line	2
b. Public assistance*	9
1. TANF documentation	0
2. SSI documentation	1
3. SNAP documentation	8
c. Foster care	3
d. Homeless	3

	pregnant women
e. Eligibility based on other type of need, but not counted in A.13.a through d	0
	# of children / pregnant women
f. Incomes between 100% and 130% of the federal poverty line, but not counted in A.13.a through e	2

A.14 If the program serves enrollees under A.13.f, specify how the program has demonstrated that all children in their area that would be eligible under A.13.a to A.13.d are being served.
 All income eligible children were selected first prior to selecting 101-130%

Prior enrollment

	# of children
A.15 Enrolled in Head Start or Early Head Start for:	
a. The second year	7
b. Three or more years	1

Transition and turnover

	# of children
A.18 Total number of infants and toddlers who left the program any time after classes or home visits began and did not re-enroll	3
 a. Of the infants and toddlers who left the program above, the number of infants and toddlers who were enrolled less than 45 days 	1
 b. Of the infants and toddlers who left the program during the program year, the number who aged out of Early Head Start 	0
Of the infants and toddlers who aged out of Early Head Start, the number who entered a Head Start program	0
Of the infants and toddlers who aged out of Early Head Start, the number who entered another early childhood program	0
3. Of the infants and toddlers who aged out of Early Head Start, the number who did not enter another early childhood program	0

	# of pregnant women
A.19 Total number of pregnant women who left the program after receiving Early Head Start services but before the birth of their infant, and did not re-enroll	0
A.20 Number of pregnant women receiving Early Head Start services at the time their infant was born	0
 a. Of the pregnant women enrolled when their infant was born, the number whose infant was subsequently enrolled in the program 	0
b. Of the pregnant women enrolled when their infant was born, the number whose infant was not subsequently enrolled in the program	0

Attendance

	# of children
A.22 The total number of children cumulatively enrolled in the center-based or family child care program option	19
a. Of these children, the number of children that were chronically absent	15
 Of the children chronically absent, the number that stayed enrolled until the end of enrollment 	12

of children /

A.23 Comments on children that were chronically absent:
Fever, viruses, Pink Eye

Child care subsidy

	# of children
A.24 The number of enrolled children for whom the program and/or its partners received a child care subsidy during the program year	0

Ethnicity and race

		., -: -:	ildren / t women
		(1) Hispanic or Latino origin	(2) Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino origin
A.25 Race and ethnicit	ty		
a. American India	an or Alaska Native	0	0
b. Asian		0	0
c. Black or Africa	n American	0	9
d. Native Hawaiia	an or other Pacific Islander	0	0
e. White		0	6
f. Bi-racial/Multi-r	acial	1	1
g. Other		2	0
Explain:	Hispanic/Latino		

	# of children / pregnant women
h. Unspecified ethnicity or race	0

Primary language of family at home

	# of children
A.26 Primary language of family at home:	
a. English	17
 Of these, the number of children acquiring/learning another language in addition to English 	0
b. Spanish	2
 c. Native Central American, South American & Mexican Languages (e.g., Mixteco, Quichean.) 	0
d. Caribbean Languages (e.g., Haitian-Creole, Patois)	0
e. Middle Eastern & South Asian Languages (e.g., Arabic, Hebrew, Hindi, Urdu, Bengali)	0
f. East Asian Languages (e.g., Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog)	0
g. Native North American/Alaska Native Languages	0
h. Pacific Island Languages (e.g., Palauan, Fijian)	0
i. European & Slavic Languages (e.g., German, French, Italian, Croatian, Yiddish, Portuguese, Russian)	0
j. African Languages (e.g., Swahili, Wolof)	0
k. American Sign Language	0
I. Other (e.g., American Sign Language)	0

m. Unspecified (language is not known or parents declined identifying the home	0	
language)	0	

Dual language learners

	# of children
A.27 Total number of Dual Language Learners	2

Transportation

	# of children
A.28 Number of children for whom transportation is provided to and from classes	0

RECORD KEEPING

Management Information Systems

A.29 List the management information system(s) your program uses to support tracking, maintaining, and using data on enrollees, program services, families, and program staff.

Name/title

ChildPlus

B. PROGRAM STAFF & QUALIFICATIONS

TOTAL STAFF

Staff by type

	(1) # of Head Start or Early Head Start staff	(2) # of contracted staff
B.1 Total number of staff members, regardless of the funding source for their salary or number of hours worked	7	0
a. Of these, the number who are current or former Head Start or Early Head Start parents	4	0

TOTAL VOLUNTEERS

Volunteers by type

	# of volunteers
B.2 Number of persons providing any volunteer services to the program during the program year	19
 a. Of these, the number who are current or former Head Start or Early Head Start parents 	16

EDUCATION AND CHILD DEVELOPMENT STAFF

Infant and toddler classroom teachers (EHS and Migrant programs)

	# of classroom teachers	
B.6 Total number of infant and toddler classroom teachers		4
	# of classroom teachers	
Of the number of infant and toddler classroom teachers, the number with the following:		
a. An advanced degree in:		
 Early childhood education with a focus on infant and toddler development or Any field and coursework equivalent to a major relating to early childhood education, with experience teaching infants and/or toddlers 		0
	# of classroom teachers	
Of the number of infant and toddler classroom teachers, the number with the following:		
b. A baccalaureate degree in:		
 Early childhood education with a focus on infant and toddler development or Any field and coursework equivalent to a major relating to early childhood education, with experience teaching infants and/or toddlers 		0
	# of classroom teachers	
Of the number of infant and toddler classroom teachers, the number with the following:		
c. An associate degree in:		
 Early childhood education with a focus on infant and toddler development or A field related to early childhood education and coursework equivalent to a major relating to early childhood education with experience teaching infants and/or 		2

toddlers

	# of classroom teachers
Of the number of infant and toddler classroom teachers, the number with the following:	
 d. A Child Development Associate (CDA) credential or state-awarded certification, credential, or licensure that meets or exceeds CDA requirements 	2
 Of these, a CDA credential or state-awarded certification, credential, or licensure that meets or exceeds CDA requirements and that is appropriate to the option in which they are working 	2

	# of classroom teachers
Of the number of infant and toddler classroom teachers, the number with the following:	
e. None of the qualifications listed in B.6.a through B.6.d	0

	# of classroom teachers
B.7 Total number of infant and toddler classroom teachers that do not have any qualifications listed in B.6.a through B.6.d	0
 a. Of these infant and toddler classroom teachers, the number enrolled in a degree, certification, credential, or licensure program that would meet one of the qualifications listed in B.6.a through B.6.d. 	0

Home visitors and family child care provider staff qualifications

	# of home visitors
B.8 Total number of home visitors	0
 a. Of these, the number of home visitors that have a home-based CDA credential or comparable credential, or equivalent coursework as part of an associate's, baccalaureate, or advanced degree 	0
 Of these, the number of home visitors that hold a baccalaureate or advanced degree 	0
 b. Of these, the number of home visitors that do not meet one of the qualifications described in B.8.a. 	0
 Of the home visitors in B.8.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in B.8.a. 	0

	# of family child care providers
B.9 Total number of family child care providers	0
 a. Of these, the number of family child care providers that have a Family Child Care CDA credential or state equivalent, or an associate, baccalaureate, or advanced degree in child development or early childhood education 	0
 Of these, the number of family child care providers that hold a baccalaureate or advanced degree in child development or early childhood education 	0
 b. Of these, the number of family child care providers that do not meet one of the qualifications described in B.9.a. 	0
1. Of the family child care providers in B.9.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in B.9.a.	0

	# of child development specialists
B.10 Total number of child development specialists that support family child care providers	0
a. Of these, the number of child development specialists that have a baccalaureate degree in child development, early childhood education, or a related field	0
 b. Of these, the number of child development specialists that do not meet one of the qualifications described in B.10.a. 	0

	# of child development specialists
 Of the child development specialists in B.10.b, the number enrolled in a degree or credential program that would meet a qualification described in B.10.a. 	0

Ethnicity and race

	# of non-supervise child develo	# of non-supervisory education and child development staff	
	(1) Hispanic or Latino origin	(2) Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino origin	
B.13 Race and Ethnicity			
a. American Indian or Alaska Native	0	0	
b. Asian	0	0	
c. Black or African American	0	1	
d. Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander	0	0	
e. White	0	3	
f. Biracial/Multi-racial	0	0	
g. Other	0	0	

	# of non-supervisory education and child development staff
h. Unspecified ethnicity or race	0

Language

	# of non- supervisory education and child development staff
B.14 The number who are proficient in a language(s) other than English.	0
 a. Of these, the number who are proficient in more than one language other than English 	0

B.15 Language groups in which staff are proficient:	# of non- supervisory education and child development staff
a. Spanish	0
b. Native Central American, South American, and Mexican Languages (e.g., Mixteco, Quichean.)	0
c. Caribbean Languages (e.g., Haitian-Creole, Patois)	0
d. Middle Eastern and South Asian Languages (e.g., Arabic, Hebrew, Hindi, Urdu, Bengali)	0
e. East Asian Languages (e.g., Chinese, Vietnamese, Tagalog)	0
f. Native North American/Alaska Native Languages	0
g. Pacific Island Languages (e.g., Palauan, Fijian)	0
h. European and Slavic Languages (e.g., German, French, Italian, Croatian, Yiddish, Portuguese, Russian)	0
i. African Languages (e.g., Swahili, Wolof)	0
j. American Sign Language	0
k. Other	0

I. Unspecified (language is not known or staff declined identifying the language)	0

STAFF TURNOVER

All staff turnover

	(1) # of Head Start or Early Head Start staff	(2) # of contracted staff
B.16 Total number of staff who left during the program year (including turnover that occurred while the program was not in session, e.g., summer months)	2	0
a. Of these, the number who were replaced	1	0

Education and child development staff turnover

	# of staff
B.17 The number of classroom teachers, preschool assistant teachers, family child care providers, and home visitors who left during the program year (including turnover that occurred while classes and home visits were not in session, e.g., during summer months)	2
a. Of these, the number who were replaced	1
b. Of these, the number who left while classes and home visits were in session	2
c. Of these, the number that were classroom teachers who left the program	2

		# of staff
B.18 Of the number of for the following p	education and child development staff that left, the number that left rimary reason:	
a. Higher compen	sation	0
1. Of these, the	e number that moved to state pre-k or other early childhood program	0
b. Retirement or r	elocation	0
c. Involuntary sep	aration	0
d. Other (e.g., cha	ange in job field, reason not provided)	2
1. Specify:	Change in job field	
B.19 Number of vacand months or longer	cies during the program year that remained unfilled for a period of 3	0

C. CHILD AND HEALTH SERVICES

HEALTH SERVICES

Health insurance - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.1 Number of all children with health insurance	19	19
a. Of these, the number enrolled in Medicaid and/or CHIP	19	18
 b. Of these, the number enrolled in state-only funded insurance (e.g., medically indigent insurance), private insurance, or other health insurance 	0	1
C.2 Number of children with no health insurance	0	0

Health insurance - pregnant women (EHS programs)

	(1) # of pregnant women at enrollment	(2) # of pregnant women at end of enrollment
C.3 Number of pregnant women with at least one type of health insurance	0	0
a. Of these, the number enrolled in Medicaid	0	0
 b. Of these, the number enrolled in state-only funded insurance (e.g., medically indigent insurance), private insurance, or other health insurance 	0	0
C.4 Number of pregnant women with no health insurance	0	0

Accessible health care - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.5 Number of children with an ongoing source of continuous, accessible health care provided by a health care professional that maintains the child's ongoing health record and is not primarily a source of emergency or urgent care	19	19
a. Of these, the number of children that have accessible health care through a federally qualified Health Center, Indian Health Service, Tribal and/or Urban Indian Health Program facility	0	0

Accessible health care - pregnant women (EHS Programs)

	(1) # of pregnant women at enrollment	(2) # of pregnant women at end of enrollment
C.6 Number of pregnant women with an ongoing source of continuous, accessible health care provided by a health care professional that maintains their ongoing health record and is not primarily a source of emergency or urgent care	0	0

Medical services – children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.7 Number of children who are up-to-date on a schedule of age- appropriate preventive and primary health care, according to the relevant state's EPSDT schedule for well child care	8	19

	# of children	
C.8. Number of children diagnosed with any chronic condition by a health care professional, regardless of when the condition was first diagnosed	2	2
 a. Of these, the number who received medical treatment for their diagnosed chronic health condition 	2	2

 Specify the primary reason that children with any chronic condition diagnosed by a health care professional did not receive medical treatment: 	# of children
No medical treatment needed	0
2. No health insurance	0
3. Parents did not keep/make appointment	0
4. Children left the program before their appointment date	0
5. Appointment is scheduled for future date	0
6. Other	0

C.9 Number of children diagnosed by a health care professional with the following chronic condition, regardless of when the condition was first diagnosed:	# of children
a. Autism spectrum disorder (ASD)	0
b. Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD)	0
c. Asthma	1
d. Seizures	0
e. Life-threatening allergies (e.g., food allergies, bee stings, and medication allergies that may result in systemic anaphylaxis)	0
f. Hearing Problems	0
g. Vision Problems	1
h. Blood lead level test with elevated lead levels >5 g/dL	0
i. Diabetes	0

Immunization services - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.11 Number of children who have been determined by a health care professional to be up-to-date on all immunizations appropriate for their age	19	19
C.12 Number of children who have been determined by a health care professional to have received all immunizations possible at this time but who have not received all immunizations appropriate for their age	0	0
C.13 Number of children who meet their state's guidelines for an exemption from immunizations	0	0

Medical and wellbeing services – pregnant women (EHS programs)

	# of pregnant women
C.14 Indicate the number of pregnant women who received the following services while enrolled in EHS:	
a. Prenatal health care	0
b. Postpartum health care	0
c. Scheduled a newborn visit within two weeks after the infant's birth	0
d. A professional oral health assessment, examination, and/or treatment	0
e. Mental health interventions and follow up	0
f. Education on fetal development	0
g. Education on the benefits of breastfeeding	0
h. Education on the importance of nutrition	0
i. Education on infant care and safe sleep practices	0
j. Education on the risks of alcohol, drugs, and/or smoking	0
 k. Facilitating access to substance abuse treatment (i.e., alcohol, drugs, and/or smoking) 	0

Prenatal health – pregnant women (EHS programs)

	# of pregnant women
C.15 Trimester of pregnancy in which the pregnant women served were enrolled:	
a. 1st trimester (0-3 months)	0
b. 2nd trimester (3-6 months)	0
c. 3rd trimester (6-9 months)	0
C.16 Of the total served, the number whose pregnancies were identified as medically high risk by a physician or health care provider	0

Newborn visit - pregnant women(EHS programs)

	# of pregnant women
C.17 Indicate the number of pregnant women that received a newborn visit	
a. Within two weeks after the infant's birth	0
b. Between two to six weeks after the infant's birth	0
c. After six weeks following the infant's birth	0

ORAL HEALTH

Accessible dental care - children

	(1) # of children at enrollment	(2) # of children at end of enrollment
C.18 Number of children with continuous, accessible oral care provided by an oral health care professional which includes access to oral health preventive care and oral treatment	17	19

	# of children
C.19 Number of children who received oral health preventive care during the program year	14
C.20 Number of all children who have completed a professional oral examination during the program year	14
 a. Of these, the number of children diagnosed as needing oral treatment during the program year 	0
 Of these, the number of children who received oral treatment during the program year 	0
 Specify the primary reason that children who needed dental treatment did not receive it: 	# of children
Health insurance doesn't cover oral treatment	0
2. No oral care available in local area	0
Medicaid not accepted by dentist	0
4. Dentists in the area do not treat 3- to 5-year-old children	0
5. Dentists in the area do not treat children below age 3	0
6. Parents did not keep/make appointment	0
7. Children left the program before their appointment date	0
Appointment is scheduled for future date	0
9. No transportation	0
10. Other	0

Mental health consultation

	# of staff
C.21 Total number of classroom teachers, home visitors, and family child care providers	4
 a. Indicate the number of classroom teachers, home visitors, and family child care providers who received assistance from a mental health consultant through observation and consultation 	0

DISABILITIES SERVICES

IDEA eligibility determination

	# of children
C.22 The total number of children referred for an evaluation to determine eligibility under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) during the program year	0
a. Of these, the number who received an evaluation to determine IDEA eligibility	0
Of the children that received an evaluation, the number that were diagnosed with a disability under IDEA	0
Of the children that received an evaluation, the number that were not diagnosed with a disability under IDEA	0
 Of these children, the number for which the program is still providing or facilitating individualized services and supports such as an individual learning plan or supports described under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. 	0
b. Of these, the number who did not receive an evaluation to determine IDEA eligibility	0

	# of children
C.23 Specify the primary reason that children referred for an evaluation to determine IDEA eligibility did not receive it:	
a. The responsible agency assigned child to Response to Intervention (RTI)	0
b. Parent(s) refused evaluation	0
c. Evaluation is pending and not yet completed by responsible agency	0
d. Other	0

Infant and toddler Part C early intervention services (EHS and Migrant programs)

	# of children
C.25 Number of children enrolled in the program who had an Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP), at any time during the program year, indicating they were determined eligible by the Part C Agency to receive early intervention services under the IDEA	3
 a. Of these, the number who were determined eligible to receive early intervention services: 	# of children
Prior to this program year	2
During this enrollment year	1
b. Of these, the number who have not received early intervention services under IDE	Α 0

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT TOOLS/APPROACHES

Screening

	# of children
C.27 Number of all newly enrolled children since last year's PIR was reported	12
C.28 Number of all newly enrolled children who completed required screenings within 45 days for developmental, sensory, and behavioral concerns since last year's PIR was reported	12
 a. Of these, the number identified as needing follow-up assessment or formal evaluation to determine if the child has a disability 	0

C.29 The instrument(s) used by the program for developmental screening	
Name/title	
ASQ (all editions)	

Assessment

C.30 Approach or tool(s) used by the program to support ongoing child assessment
Name/title
CIRCLE Assessment CLiEngage

Curriculum

C.31 Curriculum used by the program:
a. For center-based services
Name/title
Frog Street Infant
Frog Street Toddler
e. For building on the parents' knowledge and skill (i.e., parenting curriculum)
Name/title
Ready Rosie

Classroom and home visit observation tools

	Yes (Y) / No (N)
C.32 Does the program routinely use classroom or home visit observation tools to assess quality?	Yes

C.33 If yes, classroom and home visit observation tool(s) used by the program:
a. Center-based settings
Name/title
Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS: Infant, Toddler, or Pre-K)

FAMILY AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Number of families

	# of families at enrollment
C.34 Total number of families:	18
a. Of these, the number of two-parent families	8
b. Of these, the number of single-parent families	10
C.35 Of the total number of families, the number in which the parent/guardian figures are best described as:	
a. Parent(s) (e.g., biological, adoptive, stepparents)	16
 Of these, the number of families with a mother only (biological, adoptive, stepmother) 	7
Of these, the number of families with a father only (biological, adoptive, stepfather)	1
b. Grandparents	0
c. Relative(s) other than grandparents	1
d. Foster parent(s) not including relatives	1
e. Other	0

Parent/guardian education

	# of families at enrollment
C.36 Of the total number of families, the highest level of education obtained by the child's parent(s) / guardian(s):	
a. An advanced degree or baccalaureate degree	6
b. An associate degree, vocational school, or some college	4
c. A high school graduate or GED	7
d. Less than high school graduate	1

Employment, Job Training, and School

	# of families at enrollment
C.37 Total number of families in which:	
a. At least one parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment	12
Of these families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian is employed	12
 Of these families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian is in job training (e.g., job training program, professional certificate, apprenticeship, or occupational license) 	1
3. Of these families, the number in which one or more parent/guardian is in school (e.g., GED, associate degree, baccalaureate, or advanced degree)	1
b. Neither/No parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment (e.g., unemployed, retired, or disabled)	6

	# of families at end of enrollment
C.38 Total number of families in which:	
 a. At least one parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at end of enrollment 	12
 Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.a (as having been employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment) 	11
Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.b (as having not been employed, in job training, or in school at enrollment)	1
b. Neither/No parent/guardian is employed, in job training, or in school at end of enrollment (e.g., unemployed, retired, or disabled)	6
1. Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.a	1
2. Of these families, the number of families that were also counted in C.37.b	5

	# of families at enrollment
C.39 Total number of families in which:	
a. At least one parent/guardian is a member of the United States military on active duty	0
b. At least one parent/guardian is a veteran of the United States military	0

Federal or other assistance

	# of families at enrollment	# of families at end of enrollment
C.40 Total number of families receiving any cash benefits or other services under the Federal Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) Program	0	0
C.41 Total number of families receiving Supplemental Security Income (SSI)	1	1
C.42 Total number of families receiving services under the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)	17	17
C.43 Total number of families receiving benefits under the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), formerly referred to as Food Stamps	14	14

Family services

	# of families
C.44 The number of families that received the following program service to promote family outcomes:	
 a. Emergency/crisis intervention (e.g., meeting immediate needs for food, clothing, or shelter) 	1
b. Housing assistance (e.g., subsidies, utilities, repairs)	0
c. Asset building services (e.g., financial education, debt counseling)	1
d. Mental health services	1
e. Substance misuse prevention	0
f. Substance misuse treatment	0
g. English as a Second Language (ESL) training	2
h. Assistance in enrolling into an education or job training program	6
i. Research-based parenting curriculum	16
 j. Involvement in discussing their child's screening and assessment results and their child's progress 	16
k. Supporting transitions between programs (i.e., EHS to HS, HS to kindergarten)	15
Education on preventive medical and oral health	16
m. Education on health and developmental consequences of tobacco product use	15
n. Education on nutrition	16
o. Education on postpartum care (e.g., breastfeeding support)	0
p. Education on relationship/marriage	0
q. Assistance to families of incarcerated individuals	0
C.45 Of these, the number of families who were counted in at least one of the services listed above	16

Father engagement

	# of father/ father figures
C.46 Number of fathers/father figures who were engaged in the following activities during this program year:	
a. Family assessment	3
b. Family goal setting	4
c. Involvement in child's Head Start child development experiences (e.g., home visits, parent-teacher conferences, etc.)	5
d. Head Start program governance, such as participation in the Policy Council or policy committees	0
e. Parenting education workshops	1

Homelessness services

	# of families	
C.47 Total number of families experiencing homelessness that were served during the enrollment year		3
	# of children	
C.48 Total number of children experiencing homelessness that were served during the enrollment year		3

	# of families	
C.49 Total number of families experiencing homelessness that acquired housing during the enrollment year		1

Foster care and child welfare

	# of children
C.50 Total number of enrolled children who were in foster care at any point during the program year	3
C.51 Total number of enrolled children who were referred to Head Start/Early Head Start services by a child welfare agency	1

REPORTING INFORMATION

PIR Report Status	Completed With Corrections
Confirmation Number	24060560861
Last Update Date	06/05/2024

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

JUNE 2024

COMMUNITY SERVICES IS EXPERIENCING BIG CHANGES!

NEWS:

The Linden Outreach Office is now closed to the public. The base for the Community Services Division is now in Mount Pleasant. Case Managers continue to serve clients in all 12 counties in person, by email, and by phone. Phone services are in the process of being merged.

THE STORY TIMELINE:

CONGRATULATIONS TO BERNIE YANCEY ON HIS MOVE TO THE COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTOR POSITION.
BERNIE DID AN AMAZING JOB AS THE SERVICE MANAGER AND WE KNOW THAT HE WILL DO THE SAME IN HIS NEW POSITION. WE ARE SO EXCITED TO SEE THE VISION THAT HE HAS FOR THE COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION!

CSBG TOPS

OUR GOAL ESTABLISHED
BY TDHCA IS TO HELP 17
PEOPLE TRANSITION OUT OF
POVERTY ANNUALLY. WE
HOPE TO EXCEED THAT GOAL!

VSN

WE ARE STILL WRAPPING UP
VSN FOR THE CURRENT
CYCLE. UPCOMING CHANGES
WILL FOLLOW.

REENTRY PILOT PROGRAM

THE REENTRY PILOT
PROGRAM IS OFF TO A GREAT
START! WE HAVE OUR FIRST
FEW CLIENTS AND ARE
EXCITED ABOUT WHAT THIS
PROGRAM WILL BRING TO
THE COMMUNITIES THAT WE
SERVE!

HR Report for July 2024

Headcount 100

New Hires
IT Coordinator

Terms
1 Lead Teacher
1 Custodian

Vacancies
LT in New Boston
LT in Pittsburg
LT EHS in Hughes Springs
Subs

PL Hours – 595.00 LWOP Hours – 193.75 Sub Hours – 50.75 Savings – \$2454.94

Interview Stats 2024

Number of Interviews Schedule – 21 (total of person scheduled 49)

Number of Applicants to Show up – 38 (14 scheduled interviews 0 applicants showed)

Number to No show – 19

Number to decline position or ghost us after the interview -- 7

Service Department Report **JUNE 2024**

Service Department

- Department makeup 3 full time employees
 - 0 temporary employees
 - 0 Head Start employees under temporary supervision.

Head Start Transportation

Cost per child to transport:

Transportation Costs:

Children	Staff	Children	Staff	
Vehicle Maintenance cost (Campu	s)		YTD =	
Vehicle Maintenance cost (Buses)			YTD =	
Vehicle Maintenance cost (Exec. C	Office)		YTD =	
Vehicle fuel cost (Gas Campus)		58.60	YTD =	2,755.91
Vehicle fuel cost (Exec. Office)		572.66	YTD =	7,172.06
Vehicle fuel cost (BUS CAMPUS))	0	YTD =	1,510.81
Vehicle insurance cost (Buses)			YTD =	
Vehicle driver cost buses			YTD =	

Total transportation cost: 631.26

Total number transported: 132

J	un	-2	4
---	----	----	---

By Program			
	Fuel	Repairs	
TBRA	64.98	-	
CSBG	348.99	113.13	
CEAP	-	-	
VSN	-	-	

By Location				
	Fuel	Repairs		
Jefferson	51.89	13.95		
Linden	177.67	57.33		
Linden Shop	184.41	13.95		
Daingerfield	-	13.95		
	-	-		
				513.15

By Vehicle				
#	Fuel	Repairs	Total	Location
801	156.95	-	156.95	Linden Shop
844	117.65	-	117.65	Linden
888	-	13.95	13.95	Linden
881	-	1.53	1.53	Linden
882	-	13.95	13.95	Linden
883	27.46	13.95	41.41	Linden Shop
884	-	13.95	13.95	Linden
885	-	13.95	13.95	Daingerfield
886	51.89	13.95	65.84	Jefferson
887	22.50	13.95	36.45	Linden
838	37.52	-	37.52	Linden
		_	513.15	
		_		

Programs operated and counties served:

Head Start Operated in four counties												
Early Head Start Operated in one county	Bowie	Camp	Cass						Morris			
			Cass									
Children/Adult Care Food Program Operated in four counties	Davida	0	0						Marria			
	Bowie	Camp	Cass						Morris			
Community Services Block Grant Operated in twelve counties												
	Bowie	Camp	Cass	Delta	Franklin	Hopkins	Lamar	Marion	Morris	Rains	Red River	Titus
Comprehensive Energy Assistance P Operated in twelve counties	rogram											
	Bowie	Camp	Cass	Delta	Franklin	Hopkins	Lamar	Marion	Morris	Rains	Red River	Titus
Food Banks Operated in four counties												
		Camp	Cass					Marion				Titus
Salvation Army Operated in two counties												
			Cass					Marion				
Tenant Based Rental Assistance Operated in twelve counties												
	Bowie	Camp	Cass	Delta	Franklin	Hopkins	Lamar	Marion	Morris	Rains	Red River	Titus
Targeting Local Communities (TLC) Operated in twelve counties												
	Bowie	Camp	Cass	Delta	Franklin	Hopkins	Lamar	Marion	Morris	Rains	Red River	Titus
Veterans Services Now Operated in nineteen counties												
	Bowie Camp Cas	s Delta Franklin (Gregg Harris	son Hopkins	Lamar Marion Morris	Panola Rains Red River Ru	ısk Smith Tit	us Upshur Woo	od			
Offices, occupied buildings, and location	ns of operation in	n the following	g cities:									
Atlanta			Hughes :	Springs		N	It Pleasant					
Bloomburg Naples			Linden New Bos	ton								
Daingerfield			Texarkar									
Pittsburg			Jeffersor	1								

Community Services of Northeast Texas, Inc. currently employs 113 employees. The total payroll for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 was \$4 million.

CSNT, Inc. currently operates in 11 locations in a fourteen county area. Eight of the locations operate the Head Start program. Early Head Start is provided at one of the nine Head Start locations. CSNT has the ability to provide certain services in additional counties.

Revenue

Federal Awards		
Head Start	\$	4,185,216
Early Head Start	Ψ	217,593
Head Start - C-5 (ARP/CARES)		11,414
Head Start - C-6 (CRRSA)		50,387
Community Services Block Grant		417,361
Community Services Block Grant - DISCRETIONARY		21,170
Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program		4,101,583
Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program - CARES		1,276,457
LIHWAP		519,553
Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program		305,780
Texas Homeowner Funds		212,111
SS Administration		
Fee-for-service contracts		
Veterans Services Now		57,325
USDA-CACFP		142,094
Private & State Funds		
Upsher Rural		4,618
Salvation Army		1,600
Targeting Local Communities		2,333
Cash Donations		38,930
In-kind donations		1,424,794
Total revenue all categories	\$	12,990,319

Community Services of Northeast Texas, Inc. is a 501(c)3 charity, and as such retains no earnings from Federal awards, and all revenues are expended according to federal, state, and local regulations.

Expenditures

		Head Start	Early Head Start	CSBG	CEAP	All others	Org. Total
Per	sonnel	2,079,820	134,247	170,665	231,991	515,738	3,132,461
Frin	ge Benefits	511,097	47,023	29,105	50,295	75,549	713,069
Trav	vel	11,629	423	3,213	12,233	26,494	53,991
Equ	ipment ¹	122,789	828	6,669	2,524	-68,690	64,120
Sup	plies²	164.796	14.744	9.101	2.715	199.907	391,262
Con	tractual services ³		,	-, -	, -	,	,
Indi	rect Costs	387.388	15.479	39.993	296.002	154,140	893.001
Oth	er (rent, utilities, operating expenses)4	2.501.336	44.937	158,615	3.505.822	984,683	7,195,393
	ect assitance services to, or on behalf of clients	5.778.855	257.680	417.361	4.101.582	1.887.821	12.443.298

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ For Head Start, this line item includes vehicles and equipment over the cost of \$5,000

Note: Revenue amounts represent program funding; expense amounts represent fiscal year amounts and may not equal entire program funding amounts

² Supplies in 'all others' includes all consumable and food costs for the nutrition programs

³ This line item is for contracted services outside the normal scope of program operation

 $^{^4\,}$ The 'Other' category is used for all programs to include non-delineable items including, but not limited to rent, space costs, utilities, telephone, publications, fees, printing, legal, audit, insurance, fuel, repairs, travel costs not previously stated, building maintenance, safety costs, memberships, and all other standard operating costs.

PROPOSED BUDGETS

Head Start	Early Head Start

Personnel	\$	2,277,370	Personnel	\$ 147,373
Fringe Benefits		659,071	Fringe Benefits	42,650
Travel (4120)		10,000	Travel (4120)	2,190
Equipment		10,000	Equipment	0
Supplies (4122)		631	Supplies (4122)	200
Supplies		210,000	Supplies	17,850
Contractual		291,066	Contractual	0
Facilities / Construction		0	Facilities / Construction	0
Other (4120)		29,750	Other (4120)	2,867
Other (4122)		648,556	Other (4122)	32,401
Indirect Costs		396,943		23,737
	Total \$	4,533,387	Total	\$ 269,268

Community Services Block Grant		
Personnel	\$	202,460
Fringe Benefits		69,658
Travel		9,967
Equipment		6,385
Supplies		15,746
Contractual		3,266
Other		91,641
Indirect Costs		44,347
	Total \$	443,471

	i Otai	ų.	443,471
Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program			
Administration		\$	263,380
Household Crisis			1,466,282
Utility Assistance			1,466,283
Program Services			449,473
Travel			2,500
Total		\$	3,647,918

HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START SERVICE DATA

Total number of children to be served based on Head Start/Early Head Start funding

Average number of children served daily (Head Start/Early Head Start)

Average monthly enrollment (as a percentage of funded enrollment HS/EHS)

Percentage of eligible children served (Head Start/Early Head Start)

481

HS 465 EHS 16

HS 89% EHS 82%

HS 89% EHS 1%

RECENT REVIEWS

The most recent review of the Head Start program revealed the following findings:

Comprehensive Education and Child Development Services - (No areas of non-compliance)

Health & Safety - (No areas of non-compliance)

Classroom Assessment Scoring Sysytem - Results within the benchmarks set by Head Start

Family and Community Engagement - (No areas of non-compliance)

Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, Attendance (ERSEA) (no areas of non-compliance)

Fiscal Infrastructure - (No areas of non-compliance)

Leadership, Governance, and Management Systems - (No areas of non-complaince/one are of concern in supporting teachers in promoting school readiness by having specified degrees or courses)

The most recent audit of Community Services of Northeast Texas, Inc. revealed the following:

Material weakness identified in financial reporting	NO
Material weakness identified in control over federal awards	NO
Significant deficiencies identified	NONE
Audit findings required to be reported under 45 CFR Part 75 & 45 CFR Part 200	NONE
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee	NO
Financial findings and questioned costs	NONE

Broker's Opinion:

Frank Lanier, Broker Lic 279164 *East Texas Realty*108 E Rush Street P.O. Box 509
Linden TX 75563

903-756-7781

620-431-6342

HEAD START MEDICAL AND DENTAL SERVICE INFORMATION

Percentage of enrolled children up-to-date on schedule of age appropriate preventive and primary health care (Head Start/Early Head Start)	HS 87% E	EHS 100%
Percentage of enrolled children receiving dental exams (Head Start/Early Head Start)	HS 89% E	EHS 100%
Percentage of enrolled children with up-to-date immunizations (Head Start/Early Head Start)	HS 98% E	EHS 100%
Percentage of enrolled children with an IEP (Head Start/Early Head Start)	HS 10% E	EHS 18%

PARENT ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

CSNT, Inc. Head Start/Early Head Start coordinates the following activities to promote parent involvement:

- · Parent Committee Meetings
- · Parent Trainings and Activities
- · Monthly Policy Council Meetings
- Volunteering in classrooms
- · Budget management training
- Job search and counseling from local colleges
- · Local college and universities financial aid training
- Partnering with Local Food Banks
- Implementation of Mental Health/Wellness Programs
- · Partnering with ISDs in providing parent activities
- · Participation in local community activities such as Walk-a-thons
- Implementation of Father Engagement Activities such as Souper Bowl Activities

PREPARING CHILDREN FOR KINDERGARTEN

CSNT, Inc. Head Start/Early Head Start engages in the following efforts to prepare children for public school:

- Provide a variety of learning styles and skill levels for school readiness
- Provide opportunities for children to be independent and self-directed
- · Provide 'hands-on' activities
- · Establish healthy eating habits and proper lunchtime procedures
- Provide orientation to Kindergarten Campus (when applicable)
- Track and analyaze data on each child's development using state-adopted, research-based assessments
- · Allow children to make a smooth transition into kindergarten, Head Start, or other receiving program
- Coordinate with school districts and receiving programs for records needed
- Initiate communication between Early Head Start, Head Start, and receiving program staff
- Initiate joint training with Head Start/Early Head Start teachers and receiving program staff
- Provide parent-teacher communication for children transitioning out of program

EFFORTS IN BUILDING SCHOOL READINESS

CSNT, Inc. Head Start engages in the following efforts to prepare children for public school:

- Participation in the Texas Kindergarten Readiness System
- Implementation of the Texas Pre-K Guidelines and the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework
- · Implementation of a state-adopted, developmentally appropriate, research-based curriculum
- At least 15 hours of classroom-focused professional development annually for teachers
- Implementation of the Classroom Assessment Scoring System
- Implementation of Campus School Readiness Teams
- · Monitoring of school readiness goals
- Partnerships with local education agencies
- Assessment systems that track data on a student's progress on a continuum
- · Creation of student progress reports based on data

2023/2024 SCHOOL READINESS GOALS - Head Start

Area Assessed	Goal	Progress
Social & Emotional Development	Children will demonstrate the ability to interact with peers, cooperatate, and solve social problems.	84%
Perceptual, Motor, and Physical Development	Children will demonstrate control of large and small muscles for movement, coordination and balance.	81%
Approaches to Learning	Children will demonstrate a positive approach to learning.	88%
Language and Literacy	Children will develop strong receptive and expressive language skills. Children will learn and demonstrate alphabet knowledge.	79%
Cognitive Mathematics Development	Children will learn and begin to use Math Concepts.	85%
Parent Involvement Goals	Families will work with child/children to complete weekly home activities.	84%

2023/2024 SCHOOL READINESS GOALS - Early Head Start

Area Assessed	Goal	Progress
Social & Emotional Development	Children will demonstrate the ability to interact with peers, cooperatate, and solve social problems.	100%
Perceptual, Motor, and Physical	Children will demonstrate control of large and small muscles for movement, coordination and	
Development	balance.	100%
Language and Literacy	Children will develop strong receptive and expressive language skills. Children will learn and demonstrate alphabet knowledge.	100%
Cognitive Mathematics Development	Children will learn and begin to use Math Concepts.	97%
Parent Involvement Goals	Families will work with child/children to complete weekly home activities.	84%

2023/2024 Student Assessment Data - Head Start

	area of CIRC	area of CIRCLE Assessment			
	3-yr-old	4-yr-old	Disability	Dual Language	
Approaches to Learning	94%	81%	77%	95%	
Perceptual Motor & Physical	83%	79%	77%	73%	
Social Studies	85%	86%	85%	82%	
Rapid Letter Naming	64%	75%	54%	59%	
Rapid Vocabulary	92%	78%	69%	73%	
Phonological Awareness	82%	75%	62%	82%	
Mathematics	88%	81%	69%	86%	
Social-Emotional	90%	78%	69%	95%	
Science	89%	90%	85%	95%	

2023/2024 Student Assessment Data - Early Head Start

	% - Proficient at end of the school year in each area					
		12-18	-	Pre-school		
	Infants	Months	Months	Entry	Disability	Dual Language
Language & Literacy	NA	NA	100%	100%	100%	100%
Mathematics	NA	NA	100%	93%	50%	100%
Social - Emotional	NA	NA	100%	100%	100%	100%
Health & Motor	NA	NA	100%	100%	100%	100%

Federal minimum wage Agency internal minimum wage Head Start internal minimum wage \$ 7.25 per hour \$10.00 per hour \$10.00 per hour

Community Service Division Clients Served 2023	
CSBG	4,579
Energy Assistance	6,496
Salvation Army	130

CSNT, Inc. is an equal opportunity employer.

For an employment application, visit our website: www.csntexas.org



People Helping People

Our mantra: We do things the right way, the first time.

Our rule: The Grandmother Rule: It doesn't matter who is right, it only matters what is right.

Our four gospels:

- 1. It must be legal.
- 2. It must be according to the regulations.
- 3. It must be good for the program and the families and children we serve.
- 4. It must be good for our employees.

Head Start

Financial Report for the month of July 2024

Needed

\$1,133,347.00

This month

\$63,721.17

(June 2024 Expenditures)

Funding Source	Amount Funded	Expenditures	Total To Date	<u>Balance</u>	Monthly <u>Budget</u>	YTD <u>Budget</u>	(Over)/Under
12 month program endir	<i>1g 11-30-2024</i>						
Personnel	\$2,259,638.00	\$159,793.42	\$1,169,819.63	\$1,089,818.37	\$188,303.17	\$1,318,122.17	\$148,302.54
Fringe Benefits	\$559,846.00	\$40,547.18	\$289,578.12	\$270,267.88	\$46,653.83	\$326,576.83	\$36,998.71
Travel (4120)	\$10,000.00	\$1,346.36	\$8,163.67	\$1,836.33	\$833.33	\$5,833.33	(\$2,330.34)
Equipment	\$48,000.00	\$0.00	\$47,138.50	\$861.50	\$4,000.00	\$28,000.00	(\$19,138.50)
Supplies	\$245,000.00	\$11,663.60	\$93,614.26	\$151,385.74	\$20,416.67	\$142,916.67	\$49,302.41
Contractual	\$291,066.00	\$35,620.00	\$35,620.00	\$255,446.00	\$24,255.50	\$169,788.50	\$134,168.50
Facilities / Construction	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Other (4120)	\$30,381.00	\$2,481.27	\$6,441.77	\$23,939.23	\$2,531.75	\$17,722.25	\$11,280.48
Other (4122)	\$1,049,075.00	\$168,339.09	\$594,207.10	\$454,867.90	\$87,422.92	\$611,960.42	\$17,753.32
Total	\$4,493,006.00	\$419,790.92	\$2,244,583.05	\$2,248,422.95	\$374,417.17	\$2,620,920.17	\$376,337.12
T&TA	\$40,381.00	\$3,827.63	\$14,605.44	\$25,775.56	\$3,365.08	\$23,555.58	\$8,950.14
Total							
USDA Reimbursements	through May 2024						\$67,780.58
Estimated USDA Reimb	oursement for June 2	2024					\$0.00
				Resulting (over)/unde	er with USDA	_	\$444,117.70
						-	
* Total Over/Under withou	t USDA				Further Analy	rsis	
					Number of chi	ldren	465
Accruals:				\$4.00	Number of class	ssrooms	26
Actual year end payroll a	accrual \$95,000.00						
					Monthly	YTD	
	Amount Funded	Expenditures	Total To Date		Budget	Budget	(Over)/Under
Per Classroom	\$172,807.92	\$16,145.80	\$86,330.12		\$14,400.66	\$100,804.62	\$14,474.50
Per Child	\$9,662.38	\$902.78	\$4,827.06		\$805.20	\$5,636.39	\$809.33
	*						
IN-KIND (Non-Federal S	Share)						

Total

\$908,323.84

Still need

\$225,023.16

Early Head Start

Financial Report for the month of July 2024

Needed

\$67,318.00

This month

\$939.25

(June 2024 Expenditures)

(Julie 2024 Expenditure	8)						
F 4: C	A 4 F 4 - 4	Γ	T- (-1 T- D- (-	D. I	Monthly	YTD	(O) (I) I
Funding Source	Amount Funded	Expenditures	Total To Date	<u>Balance</u>	Budget	<u>Budget</u>	(Over)/Under
12 month program endi	ng 11-30-2024						
Personnel	\$150,316.00	\$11,498.25	\$73,898.38	\$76,417.62	\$12,526.33	\$87,684.33	\$13,785.95
Fringe Benefits	\$37,191.00	\$2,290.76	\$16,008.51	\$21,182.49	\$3,099.25	\$21,694.75	\$5,686.24
Travel (4120)	\$2,190.00	\$160.00	\$959.37	\$1,230.63	\$182.50	\$1,277.50	\$318.13
Equipment	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Supplies	\$15,250.00	\$264.58	\$2,592.85	\$12,657.15	\$1,270.83	\$8,895.83	\$6,302.98
Contractual	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Facilities / Construction	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00
Other (4120)	\$3,067.00	\$854.25	\$914.25	\$2,152.75	\$255.58	\$1,789.08	\$874.83
Other (4122)	\$55,997.00	\$7,929.43	\$21,291.48	\$34,705.52	\$4,666.42	\$32,664.92	\$11,373.44
Total	\$264,011.00	\$22,997.27	\$115,664.84	\$148,346.16	\$22,000.92	\$154,006.42	\$38,341.58
T&TA	\$5,257.00	\$1,014.25	\$1,873.62	\$3,383.38	\$438.08	\$3,066.58	\$1,192.96
Total							
USDA Reimbursements	through May 2024						\$10,299.34
Estimated USDA Reim	bursement for June 2	2024				_	\$262.49
				Resulting (over)/unde	er with USDA	_	\$48,903.41
* Total Over/Under withou	ut USDA			*	Further Analys	ris	~
					Number of child	dren	16
Accruals:					Number of class	srooms	2
Actual year end payroll	accrual \$5,900.00						
					Monthly	YTD	
	Amount Funded	Expenditures	Total To Date		<u>Budget</u>	Budget	(Over)/Under
Per Classroom	\$132,005.50	\$11,498.64	\$57,832.42		\$11,000.46	\$77,003.21	\$19,170.79
Per Child	\$16,500.69	\$1,437.33	\$7,229.05		\$1,375.06	\$9,625.40	\$2,396.35
IN-KIND (Non-Federal	Share)						

Total

\$13,163.36

Still need

\$54,154.64

HEAD START and EHS NUTRITION PROGRAM

July 2024 Financial Report For the month of June 2024

CACFP

	<u>Expenditures</u>	<u>Total To Date</u>
Operating Labor	\$ 7,108.95	64,680.56
Administrative Labor	1,405.74	11,467.29
Food	544.43	81,663.83
Supplies & Equipment	-	6,191.52
Purchased Services	-	0.00
Financial Costs	-	0.00
Media Costs	-	0.00
Operating Org Cost	(400.00)	223.59
Other	 _	369.17
Total	\$ 8,659.12	\$ 164,595.96

TDHS REVENUE

262.49

108,793.06

(Income Starts October 2023)

CSBG 2024

Financial Report for the	he month of July 202	<u>4</u>			% of contract	50%	
CSBG Current Program	(June 2024 Expenditu	ures)			% of money	32%	
					Monthly	YTD	
Funding Source	Amount Funded	Expenditures	Total To Date	Balance	Budget	Budget	(Over)/Under
Community Services Blo	ock Grant (CSBG) 12	month program en	ding 12/31/2024				
Personnel	\$0.00	13,298.73	\$56,033.11	(\$56,033.11)	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$56,033.11)
Fringe Benefits	0.00	2,237.73	\$8,624.17	(8,624.17)	0.00	0.00	(8,624.17)
Travel*	0.00	2,728.85	\$4,390.70	(4,390.70)	0.00	0.00	(4,390.70)
Equipment	0.00	0.00	\$1,114.10	(1,114.10)	0.00	0.00	(1,114.10)
Supplies	0.00	236.28	\$1,352.34	(1,352.34)	0.00	0.00	(1,352.34)
Contractual	0.00	562.81	\$1,531.63	(1,531.63)	0.00	0.00	(1,531.63)
Other	0.00	8,265.99	\$51,576.17	(51,576.17)	0.00	0.00	(51,576.17)
Indirect Costs	0.00	6,930.42	\$13,846.19	(13,846.19)	0.00	0.00	(13,846.19)
Total	\$432,707.00	\$34,260.81	\$138,468.41	\$294,238.59	\$36,058.92	\$216,353.50	\$77,885.09

CEAP 2024

Financial Report for the month of July 2024	% of contract	50%
CEAP Current Program (June 2024 Expenditures)	% of money	67%

	Amount Funded	Expenditures	Total To Date	Balance				
Comprehensive Energy	Assistance Program ((CEAP) 12 month p	orogram ending 12/	31/2024		Contract B	•	
						Minimun	Maximum	
Administration*	\$263,380.00	51,900.99	\$164,696.15	\$98,683.85	7%	\$21,948.33 min	\$151,344.22 max	(\$13,351.93)
Household Crisis**	1,466,282.00	2,405.70	\$75,389.52	1,390,892.48		219,272.88 min	1,466,282.00 max	1,390,892.48
Utility Assistance**	1,466,283.00	520,362.05	\$2,117,339.23	(651,056.23)		219,272.88 min	1,466,283.00 max	(651,056.23)
Program Services	449,473.00	24,715.73	\$83,589.12	365,883.88	4%	37,456.08 min	182,105.43 max	98,516.31
Training Travel	2,500.00	0.00	\$21.71	2,478.29		0.00 min	2,500.00 max	2,478.29
Total	\$3,647,918.00	\$599,384.47	\$2,441,035.73	\$1,206,882.27		\$497,950.17	\$3,268,514.64	\$827,478.91

^{*}Cannot be over-budget by end of contract **Must be at least 10% of total expenditures

Compliance calculation used, Admin = 6.0% of total grant, Program Services = 6.25% of direct expenditures

Admin with Future Payments

6.7%

Community Services of Northeast Texas, Inc.

Credit Usage Report

Board Report -July 2024

0		0		
San	าร	(;	ш	r

Purchases for Payment due by Balance

Pd on

American Express

Balance

Purchases for April 2024 & May 2024 Payment due by ---

Pd on 06/12/2024

15,319.81 (15,319.81)

Texana Bank Line of Credit

Program Highest June 2024 Balance Current balance Exp pay off date

Local Admin In House Line of Credit

Program	CSBG A	VSN
Highest June 2024 Balance	12,007.54	37,896.00
Current balance	12,007.54	34,896.00
Exp pay off date	8/31/2024	8/31/2024

CSNT Line of Credit

Program	CSBG B	CEAP B	VSN	
Highest June 2024 Balance	5,400.00	8,100.00	17,516.00	

Remittance Account Number: Care Section

AMERICAN EXPRESS CORPORATE PURCHASING CARD - BILLING STATEMENT

MICHELLE MOREHEAD 304 E. HOUSTON ST. LINDEN, TX, 75563 CSNT INC

Statement Date: 05/28/2024

Remittance Account Number: 3785:964748-96000 Load Number: 11anse Corporate ID: (Corporate)

Account Summary

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL AS PER YOUR CORPORATE CONTRACT

Debit Remittances for	Credit Balances (+)	\$0.00
Payments	(-)	(\$1,350.45)
Sign Dis		\$15,319.81
Other Credits	(-)	\$0.00
Debit	Adjustment (+)	\$0.00
Other Charges	(+)	\$0.00
Credits	(-)	(\$400.00)
Charges	(±)	\$15,719.81
Previous	Balance	\$1,350.45

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL UPON RECEIPT PER CORPORATE CONTRACT

Payment Due Date: 06/11/2024

otal Due Payable in US Dollars		\$15,319.81
Past due		\$0.00

Account Aging Summary

Current Due	\$15,319.81
30 Days Past Due	\$0.00
60 Days Past Due	\$0.00
90 + Days Past Due	\$0.00

CPC Statement Contains

	50.45	\$9,764.26	\$931.89
Balance	\$1,350.45	\$9,764.26	893
Month	April	March	February

Historical Balance Summary

Remittance Advice
List of Accounts
Transaction Details
Important Account Information

4500

RRID: 791308885 (20240531)

Account Summary Page Explanation:

Load Number:

Statement Date: Payment Terms:

Due Date:

Previous Balance:

Charges (+): Credits (-): Other Charges (+): Debit Adjustments (+):

Other Credits (-):

Current Due:

Payments (-):

Debit Remittances for Credit Balances (+):

Past Due:

Total Due:

This number identifies your remittance enabling accurate posting to your account. PLEASE INCLUDE THIS NUMBER WITH

ALL PAYMENTS.

The cutoff date in which all transactions are included in this statement since the last statement date.

he number of days past the Statement Date that payment is due to American Express. Based on your Company's contract and payment terms.

The date payment is due to American Express. Based on your Company's contract and payment terms. Amount due prior to this statement. This should equal the Total Due from the previous statement.

All new Transactions for the purchase since the previous Statement Date.

Any other transactions not considered Charges or Debit Adjustments (e.g. membership fees, transactions fees, etc) Any credits from suppliers of purchases (i.e. Service Establishments) based on Card transactions.

Delinquency charges or any other adjustments to charges (e.g. reversals of temporary credits)

All other credits not in the Payments or Credits Summary (e.g. credits pending investigation of disputes, credits posted twice, reconciliation adjustments, etc).

Total transactions for the statement month including the sum of (+) Charges, (-) Credits, (+) Other Charges, (+) Debit

Adjustments and (-) Other Credits.

All Client Payments applied since last statement.

Previous Cardmember credit balances, reimbursed to your Company, in the form of a debit payment.

Total transactions previously due but unpaid (e.g. unpaid charges and underpayments from previous statements). A previous account credit balance can result in a credit amount in this box.

amounts. In addition, "Current Due" plus "Past Due" equals "Total Due". Pay this amount to return your account to a zero This includes the sum of Previous Balance, (+) Current Due, (-) Payments and (+) Debit remittances for Credit Balance

Remittance Advice and Remittance Methods:

Please include the Load Number on all forms of payment sent to American Express

ACH: Automated Clearing House	Federal Wire	Corporate On-line Payment	Paper Check
Mellon RT of New England, NA	Chase Manhattan Bank	It is fast and easy to schedule your	For accurate and timely tracking of
1 Boston Place	New York, NY	payments via Direct Debit.	payments, please remit your check, Load #
Boston, MA 02108	Account #: 910-2-753010	Please contact your American Express	and the remittance advice mailer to:
ABA #: 0110-0123-4	ABA #: 0210-0002-1	Representative at 1-800-492-4979 to enroll	American Express
Account #: 09-1960	Account Address: Amex CPC Load #	in Corporate On-line Payment	CPS Remittance Processing-Suite A
Please use CCD+ format and include	Remit Account: 15 digit remit account #		20500 Belshaw Ave, Carson, CA 90746
Amex Load number	PO Box 53891		
	Phoenix, AZ 85072		

For electronic remittances, please contact your American Express Service representative for more details

Remittance Advice Mailer

Please include this sheet if remitting by paper check.

There are several options for electronic payment. Please contact
American Express at: 800-492-4979 for more details.

Load Number:

Payments may be mailed to: American Express CPS Remittance Processing-Suite A 20500 Belshaw Ave,
Carson, CA 90746

MICHELLE MOREHEAD CSNT INC 304 E. HOUSTON ST. LINDEN, TX, 75563

Statement Date: 05/28/2024

Load Number: (1886)
Remittance Account Number: 3785-9647-889-000
Corporate ID: (2278)

Remittance Advice

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL AS PER YOUR CORPORATE CONTRACT

Account Name	Employee ID	Cost Center	Account Aging	Account Number	Balance Due
			30 60 90+		
CREW DYKES				SUBB-ENBORY (SLUDE)	\$8,302.56
MICHELLE MOREHEAD				3795-512221 ASGUE	\$7,017.25
No. of Accounts: 2				BCA Subtotal: 3785 864758 61009	\$15,319.81

Payment Due Date: 06/11/2024

Amount Owed (\$): \$15,319.81

Amount Paid (S)



MICHELLE MOREHEAD CSNT INC 304 E. HOUSTON ST. LINDEN, TX, 75563

Statement Date: 05/28/2024

Load Number: (Radge)
Remittance Account Number: 8785 9647 4879 0469
Corporate ID: (12813)

List of Accounts

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL AS PER YOUR CORPORATE CONTRACT

	2007 S. 2007 S						
Account Number	Previous	Charges	Credits	Debit	Current Due	Payments	Debit Remittances
Account Name	Balance	Other Charges	Other Credits	Adjustment (+)		(-)	For
		(+)	(-)				Credit Balances (+)
379615660377820067	\$1,099.95	\$8,702.56	(\$400.00)	\$0.00	\$8,302.56	(\$1,099.95)	\$0.00
CREW DYKES		\$0.00	\$0.00				
80987508272743606	\$250.50	\$7,017.25	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$7,017.25	(\$250.50)	\$0.00
MICHELLE MOREHEAD		\$0.00	\$0.00				
No. of Accounts: 2					BCA Subtotal:	9785-384758-91909	\$15,319.81

Payment Due Date: 06/11/2024

Remittance Account Total: \$15,319.81

Total Accounts: 2

Account Number: 1796/566037/82006 Account Name: CREW DYKES Employee ID: Universal ID:

Statement Date: 05/28/2024

Previous Balance: \$1,099.95 Cost Center:

Spending Limit / Type: \$50,000.00 /TRN, \$50,000.00 /MTH

Transaction Details

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL AS PER YOUR CORPORATE CONTRACT

			Cardmember	Transaction	Processing	Transaction
Service Establishment Name & Address	Ref. #	Supplier Ref.	Ref#	Date	Date	Amount
AMAZON MARKEPLACE NA PA SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	2KJZGFLJE	111-3967619-04898	04/30/2024	04/30/2024	\$786.12
AMAZON MARKEPLACE NA PA SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	2Z4IQ00ZH	111-8349836-93594	04/30/2024	04/30/2024	\$786.12
RED RIVER WRECKER SE TEXARKANA	0073011764121			04/30/2024	05/01/2024	\$142.31
AMAZON MARKEPLACE NA PA SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	5IYPFE042	111-3395140-71002	05/01/2024	05/06/2024	\$24.89
AMAZON.COM LLC SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	9XFNEQE1H	111-5426991-93498	05/01/2024	05/06/2024	\$174.65
ROSEN SHINGLE ONLINE 407-9969939	0044352000000			05/03/2024	05/03/2024	(\$400.00)
AMAZON.COM LLC SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	3ROZGHMSY	111-6837481-71050	05/03/2024	05/06/2024	\$85.96
DALLASHR* REGIL85LOE DALLAS	NT_Q3AHAQSPG			05/06/2024	05/06/2024	\$869.00
HRSW HOUSING PLANO TX	f448986			05/06/2024	05/07/2024	\$258.23
AMAZON.COM LLC SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	3ZFR00YJS	111-6837481-71050	05/08/2024	05/09/2024	\$31.99
STARLINK INTERNET 06 HAWTHORNE	0073011004133			05/09/2024	05/11/2024	\$120.00
TECHSOUP 000000001 SAN FRANCISCO	ba1e27ff-6a			05/11/2024	05/12/2024	\$20.00
CORPORATE REMITTANCE RECEIVED	00002409000000			05/14/2024	05/15/2024	(\$1,099.95)
TECHSOUP 000000001 SAN FRANCISCO	754aa311-91			05/14/2024	05/15/2024	\$70.00
Courtyard By Marriot Dallas	L5			05/23/2024	05/23/2024	\$634.07
Courtyard By Marriot Dallas	L5			05/23/2024	05/23/2024	\$522.75
Courtyard By Marriot Dallas	L5			05/23/2024	05/23/2024	\$522.75
TEAMVIEWERGMBHUS LARGO	#####GY0hIz			05/23/2024	05/23/2024	\$397.40
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341900200			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$823.40
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341900300			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$823.40
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341900400			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$823.40
AMAZON MARKEPLACE NA PA SEATTLE WA98109	0000000000000	5C38CUAFQ	111-6187211-27802	05/28/2024	05/28/2024	\$786.12

Transaction Total for CREW DYKES - 3726 386 037 8 2006

\$8,302,56

Account Name: MICHELLE MOREHEAD Account Number: \$196 5732 22 3006 Employee ID: Universal ID:

Statement Date: 05/28/2024

Previous Balance: \$250.50 Cost Center:

Spending Limit / Type: \$50,000.00 /TRN, \$50,000.00 /MTH

Transaction Details

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL AS PER YOUR CORPORATE CONTRACT

			Cardmember	Transaction	Processing	Transaction
Service Establishment Name & Address	Ref. #	Supplier Ref.	Ref#	Date	Date	Amount
CORPORATE REMITTANCE RECEIVED	0002409000000			05/14/2024	05/15/2024	(\$250.50)
RED RIVER TOWING SER QUEEN CITY	0031099534136			05/15/2024	05/16/2024	\$2,850.00
SMK*SURVEYMONKEY.COM 971-231-1154	0045598192000			05/17/2024	05/18/2024	\$468.00
BUC-EES 38 ROYSE CITY TX75189	0000000000000			05/19/2024	05/20/2024	\$78.93
WAL-MART SUPERCENTER ABILENE	0041410079755			05/20/2024	05/20/2024	\$60.81
WAL-MART SUPERCENTER ABILENE	0041420037438			05/21/2024	05/21/2024	\$60.06
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341900100			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$1,029.25
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341900500			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$823.40
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341904300			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$823.40
DOUBLETREE ABILENE T ABILENE	0062341904400			05/25/2024	05/25/2024	\$823.40

Transaction Total for MICHELLE MOREHEAD - STEER TOTAL STATES

Page: 7 of 8

Important Account Information

TERMS - PAYABLE IN FULL AS PER YOUR CORPORATE CONTRACT

Payments:

method payable in U.S. dollars and clearable through the U.S. banking system. Your account number must be included on all payments. If payment does not conform to these requirements, Your American Express Corporate Purchasing Card statement is payable in full per contract terms. Payments received after 12:00 noon may not be credited until the next day. Payments must be sent to the payment address shown on your statement and must include the remittance coupon from your statement. Payments must be made with a single draft or check drawn crediting may be delayed and additional charges may be imposed. If we accept payment made in a foreign currency, we will choose a conversion rate that is acceptable to us to convert your payment into U.S. dollars, unless a particular rate is required by law. Please do not send post-dated checks. They will be deposited upon receipt. Our acceptance of any payment on a U.S. bank and payable in U.S. dollars, or with a negotiable instrument payable in U.S. dollars and clearable through the U.S. banking system, or through an electronic payment marked with a restrictive legend will not operate as an accord and satisfaction without our express prior written approval.

Authorization for Electronic Debit:

check, and you will not receive that cancelled check with your bank or asset account statement. If we cannot collect the funds electronically we may issue a draft against your bank or asset your financial institution, unless the check is not processable electronically or a less costly process is available. By submitting a check for payment, you authorize us to initiate an electronic We will process checks electronically, at first presentment and any representments, by transmitting the amount of the check, routing number, account number, and check serial number to debit from your bank or asset account. When we process your check electronically, your payment may be debited to your bank or asset account as soon as the same day we receive your account for the amount of the check.

Authorization for Electronic Payments:

By using pay by computer, pay by phone or any other electronic payment service of ours, you will be authorizing us to initiate an electronic debit to the financial account you specify in the amount you request. Payments received after 5:00 pm MST may not be credited until the next day.

Transactions made in Foreign Currencies:

in each instance increased by 2.5%. This conversion rate may differ from rates in effect on the date of your charge. Charges converted by establishments (such as airlines) will be billed at If you incur a charge in a foreign currency, it will be converted into U.S. dollars on the date it is processed by us or our agents. Unless a particular rate is required by applicable law, we will choose a conversion rate that is acceptable to us for that date. Currently, the conversion rate we use for a charge in a foreign currency is no greater than (a) the highest official conversion rate published by a government agency, or (b) the highest Interbank conversion rate identified by us from customary banking sources, on the conversion date or the prior business day, the rates such establishments use.

Check Number	Effective Date	Vendor Name	Check Amount	Description
79650	6/30/2024	HIEM Legacy Corp (Magnolia Garden)	(750.00)	Void Check
79994	6/30/2024	PHILIP R. NIXON	(1,969.00)	Void Check
80263	6/6/2024	ABILA	1,200.07	Software Support
80265	6/6/2024	AEP-SWEPCO-EA	37,029.32	Client Assistance
80267	6/6/2024	ATMOS ENERGY	11,192.06	Client Assistance
80268	6/6/2024	BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD	65.15	Employee Insurance
80269	6/6/2024	BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD	39,818.61	Employee Insurance
80270	6/6/2024	BOWIE CASS	18,787.56	Client Assistance
80271	6/6/2024	BRENDA DAVIS	944.70	Mileage Reimbursement
80272	6/6/2024	CAMCO ELEVATOR INC	150.00	Elevator Service
80273	6/6/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY	3,194.88	Client Assistance
80274	6/6/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX	49.07	Utility
80275	6/6/2024	CIRRO ENERGY	483.98	Client Assistance
80276	6/6/2024	CITY OF HUGHES SPRINGS	425.36	Utility
80277	6/6/2024	CITY OF JEFFERSON WATER .	148.94	Utility
80278	6/6/2024	CITY OF NEW BOSTON	104.28	Utility
80279	6/6/2024	CITY OF PITTSBURG	424.98	Utility
80280	6/6/2024	DAINGERFIELD - LONE STAR ISD	80.00	Head Start Meals
80281	6/6/2024	GREEN MOUNTAIN ENERGY	1,548.97	Client Assistance
80282	6/6/2024	JIMMIE RAY AYERS	800.00	Rent
80283	6/6/2024	JUST ENERGY	1,423.28	Client Assistance
80284	6/6/2024	LAMAR CO-OP	659.80	Client Assistance
80285	6/6/2024	LINDSAY HERGERT	20.10	Mileage Reimbursement
80286	6/6/2024	MCI	68.85	Telephone
80287	6/6/2024	MUTUAL OF OMAHA PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER	5,971.08	Employee Insurance
80288	6/6/2024	MY ALARM CENTER, LLC.	42.79	Alarm
80289	6/6/2024	NELSON PROPANE	908.55	Client Assistance
80290	6/6/2024	PEST-PRO SERVICES INC	225.00	Pest Control
80291	6/6/2024	PHILIP R. NIXON	279.50	Building Repair
80292	6/6/2024	PHYNET, INC.	25.00	Pre-Employment Testing
80293	6/6/2024	REGION 9 HEAD START ASSOC	606.00	Head Start Supplies
80294	6/6/2024	RELIABLE ALARM SERVICE, LLC	45.00	Alarm
80295	6/6/2024	RELIANT ENERGY	1,500.42	Client Assistance
80296	6/6/2024	RENEWED HOPE HOMES	663.00	Client Assistance
80297	6/6/2024	REPUBLIC SERVICES #070	171.29	Utility
80298	6/6/2024	Robert C Sikes DDS	277.00	Client Assistance
80299	6/6/2024	RPM STAFFING PROFESSIONALS, INC.	2,906.28	Temp Staffing
80300	6/6/2024	SOUTHWESTERN ELECTRIC POWER	764.98	Utility
80301	6/6/2024	STAPLES	385.41	Office Supplies
80302	6/6/2024	SUMMIT UTILITIES OF ARKANSAS	433.66	Client Assistance
80303	6/6/2024	TEACHSTONE TRAINING LLC	135.00	Head Start Supplies
80304	6/6/2024	TEXARKANA WATER UTILITIES	281.26	Client Assistance
80305	6/6/2024	TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES	1,717.00	Copier Expenses
80306	6/6/2024	TRICO LUMBER CO.	28.97	Building Repair
80307	6/6/2024	TXU-ASSISTANCE GROUP	1,734.95	Client Assistance
80307	6/6/2024	UPSHUR RURAL ELEC. CORP.	6,653.34	Client Assistance
			633.23	
80310	6/6/2024	VANCO SYSTEMS, INC.		Copier Expenses
80311	6/6/2024	WASTE MANAGEMENT CORPORATE SERVICES, INC.	196.31	Utility
80312	6/12/2024	21ST MORTGAGE CORPORATION	641.14	Client Assistance

Check Number	Effective Date	Vendor Name	Check Amount	Description
80313	6/12/2024	ABERNATHY COMPANY	692.60	Cleaning Supplies
80314	6/12/2024	ABILA	375.00	Software Support
80315	6/12/2024	AEP-SWEPCO-EA	964.55	Client Assistance
80316	6/12/2024	AMERICAN EXPRESS	15,319.81	Travel & Supplies
80317	6/12/2024	AP GAS & ELECTRIC (TX), LLC	103.31	Client Assistance
80318	6/12/2024	AT&T	1,292.24	Telephone & Internet
80319	6/12/2024	ATLANTA UTILITIES	478.68	Client Assistance
80320	6/12/2024	ATMOS ENERGY	40.33	Client Assistance
80321	6/12/2024	B & S TRUE VALUE HARDWARE	19.39	Building Repair
80322	6/12/2024	BLOOMBURG WATER SUPPLY	67.06	Utility
80323	6/12/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX	118.83	Utility
80324	6/12/2024	CITY OF PARIS	236.00	Client Assistance
80325	6/12/2024	CONN AUTO SUPPLY	277.50	Vehicle Repairs
80326	6/12/2024	CYPRESS SPRINGS SUD	41.79	Client Assistance
80327	6/12/2024	ERICK BALLESTEROS	1,770.00	Client Assistance
80328	6/12/2024	ETEX TELEPHONE CORP, INC.	6,172.79	Telephone & Internet
80329	6/12/2024	GAUDENCIO BARRIOS	575.00	Client Assistance
80330	6/12/2024	GREG'S MIRACLE MART	250.65	Vehicle Fuel
80331	6/12/2024	HEALTHCARE EXPRESS LLP	286.00	Pre-Employment Testing
80332	6/12/2024	HOPE FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE, INC/ KLEEN KING	28.95	Fire Ext. Repair
80333	6/12/2024	HOUSING AUTHORITY OF TEXARKANA, TX	358.00	Client Assistance
80334	6/12/2024	KIM'S CONVENIENCE STORES	53.87	Vehicle Fuel
80335	6/12/2024	LINDEN FUEL CENTER	1,034.48	Vehicle Fuel
80336	6/12/2024	MOUNTAIN VALLEY OF TEXARKANA	148.00	Drinking Water
80337	6/12/2024	OMKAR INVESTMENT LLC	139.63	Client Assistance
80338	6/12/2024	PARENTPOWERED PBC	1,997.50	Subscription
80339	6/12/2024	POSITIVE PROMOTIONS, INC.	50.73	Office Supplies
80340	6/12/2024	RPM STAFFING PROFESSIONALS, INC.	3,498.30	Temp Staffing
80341	6/12/2024	S.W. ARKANSAS TELE. CO-OP	225.02	
80342		SOUTHWESTERN ELECTRIC POWER		Telephone & Internet
80343	6/12/2024	TEACHSTONE TRAINING LLC	280.06	Utility
	6/12/2024		810.00	Head Start Supplies
80344	6/12/2024	THE HR SPECIALIST	211.00	Subscription
80345	6/12/2024	TRICO LUMBER CO.	323.37	Building Repair
80346	6/12/2024	WEX HEALTH, INC.	172.00	Cobra Fees
80347	6/12/2024	WINDSTREAM	290.82	Telephone & Internet
80348	6/12/2024	XEROX CORPORATION	844.18	Copier Expenses
80349	6/18/2024	A & R SERVICE CENTER LLC	100.00	Vehicle Repairs
80350	6/18/2024	AT&T	92.47	Telephone & Internet
80351	6/18/2024	ATLANTA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DIST	430.00	Head Start Meals
80352	6/18/2024	AUTOUSA, LTD	879.50	Client Assistance
80353	6/18/2024	BARBARA LARRY, LPC	185.00	Mental Health Provider
80354	6/18/2024	BEN E KEITH CO	560.50	Head Start Groceries
80355	6/18/2024	BENEFITS TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES LLC	200.00	Employee Cost
80356	6/18/2024	BLOOMBURG ISD	12,870.00	Staffing Fees
80357	6/18/2024	CAMCO ELEVATOR INC	150.00	Elevator Service
80358	6/18/2024	CARCO GROUP INC	70.00	Pre-Employment Testing
80359	6/18/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX	51.41	Utility
80360	6/18/2024	CHILDPLUS SOFTWARE	14,875.00	Software Support
80361	6/18/2024	HEALTHJOY LLC	955.50	Employee Insurance

Check Number	Effective Date	e Vendor Name	Check Amount	Description
80362	6/18/2024	HUGHES SPRINGS ISD	23,550.25	Staffing Fees
80363	6/18/2024	LOLA MCGEE	1,501.00	Mental Health Provider
80364	6/18/2024	LUMINOUS SERVICES LLC	1,382.18	Cleaning Service
80365	6/18/2024	MOORE J & C PROPERTIES LLC	2,000.00	Client Assistance
80366	6/18/2024	MOUNTAIN VALLEY OF TEXARKANA	129.50	Drinking Water
80367	6/18/2024	ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC	1,656.86	Office Supplies
80368	6/18/2024	RVP MANAGEMENT	900.00	Client Assistance
80369	6/18/2024	SKAGGS TRAVEL STOPS INC.	107.52	Vehicle Fuel
80370	6/18/2024	SOUTHWESTERN ELECTRIC POWER	3,245.13	Utility
80371	6/18/2024	TEXARKANA ISD CATERING DEPT	5,377.31	Head Start Meals
80372	6/18/2024	TRICO LUMBER CO.	321.70	Building Repair
80373	6/18/2024	Tutu's & Buckaroo's Childcare Center	208.00	Client Assistance
80374	6/18/2024	U.S. POSTMASTER	74.00	Box Rent
80375	6/18/2024	VERIZON WIRELESS	2,355.69	Cell Service
80376	6/18/2024	VESTIS GROUP , INC	742.65	Client Assistance
80377	6/18/2024	WINDSTREAM	296.10	Telephone & Internet
80378	6/18/2024	WISCONSIN QUICK LUBE, INC.	104.27	Vehicle Repairs
80387	6/20/2024	AEP-SWEPCO-EA	171,676.32	Client Assistance
80388	6/20/2024	AMBIT ENERGY	1,545.91	Client Assistance
80389	6/20/2024	AMERIGAS DALLAS	769.82	Client Assistance
80390	6/20/2024	ATMOS ENERGY	4,928.40	Client Assistance
80392	6/20/2024	BOWIE CASS	34,074.09	Client Assistance
80394	6/20/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY	14,154.91	Client Assistance
80395	6/20/2024	CIRRO ENERGY	983.47	Client Assistance
80396	6/20/2024	DEBERRY BUTANE COMPANY	640.00	Client Assistance
80397	6/20/2024	DIRECT ENERGY	1,381.71	Client Assistance
80398	6/20/2024	FARMER ELECTRIC	2,200.00	Client Assistance
80399	6/20/2024	GEXA ENERGY	996.03	Client Assistance
80400	6/20/2024	GREEN MOUNTAIN ENERGY	1,158.62	Client Assistance
80401	6/20/2024	LAMAR CO-OP	1,170.79	Client Assistance
80402	6/20/2024	MCADAMS PROPANE COMPANY	700.00	Client Assistance
80403	6/20/2024	MCADAMS PROPANE COMPANY	471.50	Client Assistance
80404	6/20/2024	NELSON PROPANE	2,469.80	Client Assistance
80405	6/20/2024	NEW POWER TEXAS	1,536.69	Client Assistance
80406	6/20/2024	RELIANT ENERGY	1,366.71	Client Assistance
80407	6/20/2024	SUMMIT UTILITIES OF ARKANSAS	2,343.30	Client Assistance
80408	6/20/2024	TRIEAGLE ENERGY	1,344.15	Client Assistance
80409	6/20/2024	TXU-ASSISTANCE GROUP	25,290.79	Client Assistance
80411	6/20/2024	UPSHUR RURAL ELEC, CORP.	32,876.46	Client Assistance
80412	6/26/2024	ABERNATHY COMPANY	32,876.40 44.00	
80413	6/26/2024	ABILA		Cleaning Supplies
80418	6/26/2024	AEP-SWEPCO-EA	1,200.06	Software Support
80419	6/26/2024	AFLAC	98,111.29	Client Assistance
			1,039.70	Employee Insurance
80420	6/26/2024	AMBER BUTLER	160.00	Per Diem
80421	6/26/2024	AREA WIDE PROPERTIES	1,400.00	Rent
80422	6/26/2024	ATLANTA ISD	700.00	Rent
80423	6/26/2024	BENEFITS TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES LLC	200.00	Employee Cost
80424	6/26/2024	BOWIE CASS	19,687.56	Client Assistance
80425	6/26/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY	3,245.54	Client Assistance

Check Number	Effective Date	Vendor Name	Check Amount	Description
80426	6/26/2024	CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX	124.46	Utility
80427	6/26/2024	CHARIOT ENERGY	4,258.53	Client Assistance
80428	6/26/2024	CITY OF DAINGERFIELD	181.00	Client Assistance
80429	6/26/2024	CITY OF HUGHES SPRINGS	134.35	Client Assistance
80430	6/26/2024	CITY OF LINDEN	507.29	Client Assistance
80431	6/26/2024	CITY OF MOUNT PLEASANT	106.20	Client Assistance
80432	6/26/2024	CITY OF PARIS	236.00	Client Assistance
80433	6/26/2024	DIRECT ENERGY	1,967.64	Client Assistance
80434	6/26/2024	EAST TEXAS REALTY	300.00	Rent
80435	6/26/2024	FARMER ELECTRIC	721.02	Client Assistance
80436	6/26/2024	GLENN B. LANIER	240.00	Rent
80437	6/26/2024	HUGHES SPRINGS ISD	800.00	Rent
80438	6/26/2024	IRIS GROUP HOLDINGS LLC	119.97	Alarm
80439	6/26/2024	James Jackson	900.00	Client Assistance
80440	6/26/2024	JESSICA WALLACE	160.00	Per Diem
80441	6/26/2024	JIMMIE RAY AYERS	800.00	Rent
80442	6/26/2024	KRIZIA LINWOOD	28.14	Mileage Reimbursement
80443	6/26/2024	LATOYA YOUNG	160.00	Per Diem
80444	6/26/2024	MARIA B GUERRERO	500.00	Client Assistance
80445	6/26/2024	MARTAVIUS JONES	48.24	Mileage Reimbursement
80446	6/26/2024	MCADAMS PROPANE COMPANY	2,923.55	Client Assistance
80447	6/26/2024	Norwood Family Dental	2,000.00	Client Assistance
80448	6/26/2024	ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC	661.49	Office Supplies
80449	6/26/2024	PAM MCMICHEAL	298.00	Client Assistance
80450	6/26/2024	PAUL E CHAPMAN	500.00	Client Assistance
80451	6/26/2024	R. MORGAN, LLC	1,000.00	Rent
80452	6/26/2024	REDFEARN PROPERTIES	551.00	Client Assistance
80453	6/26/2024	RENEWED HOPE HOMES	663.00	Client Assistance
80454	6/26/2024	RENTONE LLC	475.00	Client Assistance
80455	6/26/2024	ROBBIE HUDSON	208.00	Per Diem
80456	6/26/2024	RPM STAFFING PROFESSIONALS, INC.	1,891.98	Temp Staffing
80457	6/26/2024	SOUTHWESTERN ELECTRIC POWER	1,007.04	Utility
80458	6/26/2024	SUMMIT DENTAL	159.60	Client Assistance
80459	6/26/2024	TERESA THOMPSON	36.18	Mileage Reimbursement
80460	6/26/2024	TEXARKANA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT	3,882.00	Rent
80461	6/26/2024	TEXARKANA PROPANE	300.00	Client Assistance
80462	6/26/2024	THE ADT SECURITY CORPORATION	119.97	Alarm
80463	6/26/2024	THE HR SPECIALIST	135.00	Subscription
80464	6/26/2024	TNT Properties of Texarkana	965.00	Client Assistance
80465	6/26/2024	TRICO LUMBER CO.	112.03	Building Repair
80466	6/26/2024	TURNER DAVID K	1,150.00	Rent
80467	6/26/2024	TXU-ASSISTANCE GROUP	3,713.61	Client Assistance
80468	6/26/2024	UPSHUR RURAL ELEC. CORP.	8,272.31	Client Assistance
80469	6/26/2024	WEST STREET HOME AND AUTO	265.87	Grounds Equip Repair
80470	6/26/2024	WILLIAMS CHAPEL BAPTIST CHURCH	5,256.81	Utility Reimb.
Report Total			736,754.00	

COMMUNITY SERVICES OF NORTHEAST TEXAS Balance Sheet As of 6/30/2024

Assets

CASH IN BANK CHECKING	0.00
HEAD START CHECKING	1,000.00
DHS MEALS CHECKING	0.00
CSBG/CEAP/WX CHECKING	0.00
WEATHERIZATION CHECKING	0.00
DISBURSEMENTS CHECKING	0.00
FEMA CHECKING	0.00
ETCOG CHECKING	0.00
OLD - CEAP CHECKING (Do Not Use)	0.00
CEAP CHECKING (Do Not Use)	0.00
PAYROLL CASH ACCOUNT	0.00
IP Grant Checking	0.00
HOUSING CHECKING	0.00
LOCAL ADMIN CHECKING	0.00
CASH DONATIONS - LINDEN	0.00
CSBG Checking	0.00
CEAP Checking	0.00
Upshur Rural Checking	0.00
TLC Checking	0.00
CSBG 2012 SP	0.00
JEFFERSON CHECKING	0.00
BECKVILLE SR. CHECKING	0.00
CARTHAGE SR. CHECKING	0.00
HALLSVILLE SR. CHECKING	0.00
MARSHALL SR. CHECKING	0.00
WESTEND CHECKING	0.00
PITTSBURG SR. CHECKING	0.00
WASKOM SR. CHECKING	0.00
NEWSOME SR. CHECKING	0.00
CEAP UB CASH ACCOUNT	0.00
SALVATION ARMY CHECKING	1,354.24
HS ARRA CHECKING	0.00
CSBG ARRA CHECKING	0.00
CHILD CARE WELLNESS CHECKING	0.00
CSBG UB CHECKING	0.00
PARENT FUND CHECKING	0.00
CBA UNITED HEALTH	0.00
CBA CIGNA HEALTH SPRING	0.00
CSBG DISCRETIONARY	0.00
TEXANA ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DISBURSEMENT	128,532.03
TEXANA ACCOUNTS PAYABLE DISBURSEMENT 2	29,037.45
NEW DISBURSEMENT CHECKING	67,380.59
TEXANA CSBG A CHECKING	919.43
TEXANA CSBG B CHECKING	12,989.26
TEXANA CSBG DISCRETIONARY CHECKING	8,524.02
TEXANA HEAD START CHECKING	936.48
TEXANA CEAP A CHECKING	10,332.50

COMMUNITY SERVICES OF NORTHEAST TEXAS

Balance Sheet As of 6/30/2024

AS 01 0/30/2024	
TEXANA CEAP B CHECKING	28,311.73
TEXANA CBA UNITED HEALTH CARE CHECKING	0.00
TEXANA CBA CIGNA HEALTH SPRING CHECKING	0.00
TEXANA UPSHUR RURAL CHECKING	18,622.61
TEXANA TLC CHECKING	34,088.70
TEXANA LOCAL ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKING	94,587.97
TEXANA PAYROLL CASH ACCOUNT	0.00
TEXANA CLIENT FUNDS FOR SSA BENEFITS	0.00
TEXANA TBRA CHECKING	21,952.00
TEXANA POSTAL ACCOUNT CHECKING	204.47
TEXANA VET SERVICES NOW	94.48
TEXANA BANK YOUTH EMPOWERMENT CHECKING	20,671.68
TEXANA CSBG CARES CHECKING	0.00
TEXANA CEAP CARES CHECKING	(8,976.39)
TEXANA NEW PAYROLL CASH ACCOUNT	130,298.02
TEXANA EARLY HEAD START CHECKING	500.00
TEXANA CEAP ARP CHECKING	0.00
TEXANA INDIRECT COST RATE CHECKING	190,617.65
TEXANA ATMOS ENERGY 'SHARE THE WARMTH' PROGRAM CHECKING	21,668.31
TEXANA ORGANIZATION PAYEE FUNDS	0.00
TEXANA LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE CHECKING	31,700.80
TEXANA TEXAS HOMEOWNER ASSISTANCE FUND	0.00
TEXANA IN HOUSE LINE OF CREDIT CHECKING	82,484.00
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - AISD	0.00
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - Employee Reimbursement	0.00
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - LKISD	0.00
ACCOUNTS RECEIVALBE - BISD	0.00
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE	0.00
GRANT RECEIVABLE	(28,765.11)
GRANT RECEIVABLE-ATC	0.00
GRANT RECEIVABLE-TIT	0.00
INDIRECT COST RECEIVABLE	(10,055.74)
EMPLOYEE ADVANCE	0.00
GRANTS RECEIVABLE - USDA	0.00
PROMISES TO GIVE	0.00
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS	0.00
DUE FROM DHS MEALS	0.00
DUE FROM WEATHERIZATION	0.00
DUE FROM FEMA	0.00
DUE FROM ETCOG	0.00
DUE FROM CEAP	0.00
DUE FROM DHS TRANSPORTATION	0.00
DUE FROM HOUSING	0.00
DUE FROM LOCAL ADMIN	0.00
RENTAL HOME DEPOSITS	0.00
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION	(119,108.23)
PREPAID RENT	9,354.50
Prepaid Expense	0.00
PREPAID WORKERS COMP	0.00
PREPAID INSURANCE	(7,640.82)

COMMUNITY SERVICES OF NORTHEAST TEXAS

Balance Sheet As of 6/30/2024

PREDATE MATRITEMANICE	• •	2.22
PREPAID MAINTENANCE	Total Commant Assats	0.00
Lang Torm Accets	Total Current Assets	771,616.63
Long Term Assets PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT		3,071,902.39
LAND		0.00
BUILDINGS		0.00
EQUIPMENT		0.00
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION		(1,671,641.11)
RIGHT TO USE ASSETS		407,969.68
Maiii 10 dae Adae 13	Total Long Term Assets	1,808,230.96
Total Assets	rotar zong Term Assets	2,579,847.59
Current Liabilities		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		0.00
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE-OLD BOX		0.00
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - REALWORLD		0.00
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - ACCR & ADJ		0.00
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - VALLEY		0.00
GRANT PAYABLE		0.00
NEW ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		0.00
TEXANA ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		20,601.68
STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES		0.00
Sales Tax Payable		0.00
WORKERS COMP PAYABLE		0.00
SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE PAYABLE		0.00
EMPLOYEE PORTION HLTH INS PAYABLE		0.00
Employee Insurance Repayment		0.00
Short Term Disability Payable		0.00
Long Term Disability Payable		0.00
DENTAL INSURANCE PAYABLE		0.00
VISION INSURANCE PAYABLE		0.00
HSA CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE		0.00
CAFETERIA PLAN PAYABLE		0.00
AUL CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE		0.00
LIFE/DISABILITY INSURANCE		0.00
COBRA PREMIUMS PAYABLE		0.00
RETIREMENT PAYABLE		0.00
GARNISHED WAGES PAYABLE		0.00
INSURANCE W/H		0.00
MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLE		0.00
PAYROLL LIABILITIES - AUDIT		0.00
ACCRUED LIABILITIES		0.00
NOTE PAYABLE		150,000.00
DEFERRED REVENUE		0.00
RECIPROCAL ADJUSTMENT - ACCT 2000		0.00
RECIPROCAL ADJUSTMENT - ACCOUNT 2007		0.00
ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE		0.00
ACCRUED PAYROLL		0.00
ACCRUED VACATION		65,105.59
LEASE PAYABLE		289,723.19
CONTIGENT LIABILITY		0.00

COMMUNITY SERVICES OF NORTHEAST TEXAS Balance Sheet

As of 6/30/2024

Total Liabilities and Net Assets	2,579,847.59
·	
Excess Revenues over Expenditures	
Total Current Net Assets	
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS	0.00
NET ASSETS - PROPERTY	0.00
NET ASSETS - CHIPS	0.00
NET ASSETS - SFSP	0.00
NET ASSETS - NON FEDERAL	0.00
NET ASSETS - EQUIPMENT	0.00
NET ASSETS	77,362.36
Net Assets	,
Total Current Liabilities	
DUE TO STATE	0.00
DUE TO LOCAL ADMIN	0.00
DUE TO DHS TRANSPORTATION	0.00
DUE TO FEMA	0.00
DUE TO CSBG	0.00
DUE TO DHS MEALS	0.00
DUE TO HEADSTART	0.00
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS	0.00
CONTINGENCY WX-QUESTIONED COST	0.00